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For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue was
approximately RMB134,441,000 (2019: approximately
RMB182,681,000), representing a year-on-year decrease of
26.4%.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, gross profit was
approximately RMB31,599,000 (2019: approximately
RMB61,995,000), representing a year-on-year decrease of
49.0%.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
a net loss of approximately RMB3,157,000 (2019: net profit
of approximately RMB24,124,000), such decrease in net
profit was mainly due to the recognition of non-recurring
listing expense and the decrease in revenue from the Group’s
business of sales of faux leather chemicals in 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the adjusted net profit
was approximately RMB7,089,000, representing a decrease of
80.2% as compared to that of RMB35,761,000 in 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, basic loss per share
of the Company was RMB0.33 cents (2019 basic earnings per
share: RMB3.22 cents).

The Board has resolved not to declare the final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Note:  The adjusted net profit represents the Group’'s profit
excluding the effect of listing expenses.

Financial Highlights
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

To all shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Sunlight
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020 (the "Reporting Period”).

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 12 March 2020 (the “Listing Date").

BUSINESS REVIEW

2020 has been a challenging year under the outbreak and
spread of COVID-19 pandemic across the world. Various
countries have implemented stringent anti-pandemic
measures, thus severely restricting logistics flows and leading
to the global trade stagnation. With the sluggish demand
for living and production, the global economy has recorded
negative growth, as well as rising instability and uncertainty.
The global macroeconomic environment has become complex,
challenging and difficult. As the domestic economic growth
has been softening, the tasks of maintaining growth and
maintaining employment have been arduous. Affected by the
inflexible environmental protection and safety regulations,
the world awash with US dollars, and massive economic
rescue packages, certain raw material prices have increased
significantly. Enterprises have faced unprecedented challenges
and difficulties. The nationwide polyurethane synthetic leather
industry has been obviously differentiated and, therefore
the industry integration has entered a period of intensive
adjustment.

Faced with the severe impacts of the complex and volatile
domestic and foreign business environment, especially the
COVID-19 epidemic, the Group has worked together to
cope with the difficulties and strive to stand against it. We
have made unremitting efforts for the Group's survival and
development. In the second half of the year, the Group's
business has gradually recovered, while the quality of
development has been improved. With our simultaneous works
of introducing of brand, innovation, intelligent manufacturing,
and effective management, we have further enhanced our
corporate development effectiveness, comprehensive strength,
brand image and social influence.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report

BEMRR

AANERERREMBERER AR ([RD
ANEFES ([EEE]) MAZHRALQF
LEWEBAR ([REH])HE20205F12
ABTALEFE ([8|EMH ) WFHRERLR
AR AWK -

AATA2020%E38128 (LT BEE])#E
REBHARSMERAA ([BRAT])E
RETe

EEDEE

20204 2R A kB R — F - SR I AR IT
REVAEDIRER SEBETHREHNHE
i MRARBERR  2HEHEIMOE
e EENEER KR 2REEFAR
R PREUETHEEME LT 2RREL
BIRIRAE R~ BRIRFIZRZE - B 4K 7538 & [0l
ERERREEEIBERE RE R2E
BN ETLE  MBNBUR A - &
2 R RHE R R IE L3k - 1 R ER AT AT R
BERSENN 2B RABaKETE
DL TEREBEAEAREHEL-

HMEERSENBEARIMEERE  LEEH
BRENREGE SELTELRT D
B L EOBHE RAGNZERMITES
N THFEREXBESME BREER
FtomiEslE BIFRE)  Hae kg B
RUSTIFEBELE CXEREE KA
BN mEVR HEFENE-FREIT



MAIN COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

During the Reporting Period, the Group had and continued to
enhance the following competitive advantages: (i) the Group
is an established and active market player in the faux leather
chemicals manufacturing industry in the PRC and its successful
listing has enhanced its brand influence; (ii) the Group has
strong research and development capabilities which allow it to
offer a wide spectrum of portfolio of products; (iii) the Group
has established long-term business relationship with our major
customers and suppliers, which enables the Group to explore
more diversified cooperation and development; and (iv) the
Group has an experienced management team with prominent
industry expertise, which is enhanced through the continuous
introduction of new teams for maintaining its sophistication.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to
vigorously develop its various businesses. The Group aims
to maintain the sustainable growth of our business and
strengthen our market position in the faux leather chemicals
manufacturing industry. Since the second half of 2020, the
industry has gradually entered a phase of recovery. Looking
forward to 2021, the gradual recovery of the global economy
will bring new opportunities to the whole industry. To this
end, the Group will continue to adopt the following strategies:
(i) further expanding the production capacity for colourant
products; (ii) continuing to strengthen our research and
development capabilities and further expanding our product
portfolio and geographical coverage; and (iii) enhancing
automation of our existing production facility and information
management system. We foresee that the negative impact
caused by the COVID-19 epidemic, which has been spreading
across the world since January 2020, will not be eliminated
within short period of time, and repeated outbreaks will occur
in various countries. Depending on the future development of
COVID-19 subsequent to the date of these financial results,
further changes in the financial position of the Group may
arise, which may have an impact on the financial results of the
Group. The Group will continue to monitor the development
of COVID-19 and actively assess its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group from time to time,
while making its utmost efforts to minimize the impact.
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare the final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | would like to express my gratitude to all employees,
shareholders and business partners of the Group. The Group
will seize the opportunities to venture into the future and
continue to create long-term value for shareholders and
society.

LIU Jing
Chairman
Hangzhou, PRC, 31 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Group’s Overall Business and Financial
Performance

We are an established faux leather chemicals manufacturer in
the PRC principally engaged in the research and development,
manufacturing and sale of coating agents and synthetic resins
under our own brand.

During the Reporting Period, the epidemic of novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) erupted around the world. As stringent anti-
pandemic measures were imposed by various countries,
coupled with the generally delayed resumption of work
and production of enterprises, the global industrial chain
was hit by the shocks comprehensively. The downstream
industries and consumer markets were sluggish. In respect
of the global polyurethane synthetic leather industry, the
downstream demand for leather products, such as garments,
shoes, handbags and bags, household products and sports
equipment, declined significantly. Under the worldwide
outbreak, most of the foreign countries were in an anti-
pandemic situation during the first half year, and have not yet
been fully opened up from lockdown in the second quarter.
The situation has had a significant impact on the downstream
customers of the Company, as well as a greater adverse impact
on the production and operation of the Company, resulting
in a decrease of approximately RMB31,461,000 or 38.7% in
the Company’s revenue as compared with that of the same
period last year. Since the second half of the year, with the
joint efforts of various countries, downstream demand in
various industries has recovered. Revenue of the Company for
the period reached approximately 83% of its revenue for that
of the same period last year. However, the entire industry was
impacted by various factors, such as the significant rising of
upstream chemical materials prices and the expected negative
impacts of the rebounding worldwide pandemic. The outlook
in our industry remains challenging.

EEENWmE DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNwR DM

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue decreased by
approximately RMB48,240,000 or 26.4% from approximately
RMB182,681,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB134,441,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020. The decrease in revenue from the Group’s
business of sales of faux leather chemicals was mainly due to
the following factors:

(1

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

the global outbreak of the novel coronavirus in 2020
("COVID-19 Outbreak”) has had a strong impact on
the global economy and financial markets, where foreign
countries had implemented draconian measures to
prevent further spread of epidemic including lock-down
measures, travel and transportation restrictions etc., and
have not been fully resumed as of the end of 2020. This
adversely affected the overall economic environment
and the consumer market which led to a decrease in the
market demand in faux leather manufacturing industries
such as apparel, footwear, handbags and luggage, home
furnishings and sports equipment. In addition, the lock-
down measures adopted by countries in response to
COVID-19 Outbreak has had an adverse effect on the
production and operation of the Group’s downstream
customers which subsequently affected the faux leather
chemicals manufacturing industry and the Group's
revenue,

the lock-down measures adopted by countries in
response to COVID-19 Outbreak and the escalating
tension between the United States (the “US”) and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") have had a strong
impact on the trading activities and logistics arrangement
globally, which affected the performance of the overall
manufacturing exports industries and the downstream
industries of faux leather manufacturing industry such
as apparel, footwear, handbags and luggage, home
furnishings and sports equipment. It subsequently
affected the overall faux leather manufacturing industry,
faux leather chemicals manufacturing industry and the
Group's revenue; and

the faux leather manufacturing industry was affected by
significant increase in upstream chemical materials prices
such as petroleum and titanium dioxide, and recurring
negative impact from the pandemic rebound.

2020 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's gross profit decreased by RMB30,396,000 or
49.0% from approximately RMB61,995,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB31,599,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

During the Reporting Period, although the production and
operations of the Company were greatly affected by the
pandemic, the Company, by active efforts to strengthen
our co-operation with outstanding enterprises in the PRC's
faux leather industry, captured growth opportunities related
to water-based products, adjusted our product strategies
according to the market in a timely manner, and therefore
gradually increased our sales of colour chips products.
We proactively developed new products and sourced new
customers, while at the same time introducing technical teams
for various products (such as resin products etc.), intensifying
the research and development of relevant products, as well as
promoting and making good achievements in various projects
such as the workstations for postdoctoral scientific research,
internet of things pilot schemes, so as to get ourselves well-
prepared for the rebound in business in the coming year and
for the future development.

Our Business Strategies and Future Prospects

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to enhance its
overall competitiveness and market share by strengthening
its premium long-term relationship with existing customers,
proactively developing new customers, continuing to
strengthen its research and development capabilities and
further expanding our product portfolio and geographical
coverage. The Group will continue to expand the research and
development center, promote the development and sales of
products, such as finishes, synthetic resins, and water-based
resins, strengthen the organisational structure to prepare for
the full recovery of sales in 2021, while actively promoting
the production automation and informatization, so as to lay a
foundation for long-term development.

In view of the worldwide spread of the epidemic caused by
COVID-19 since January 2020 and the uncertainties in the
global economy, the Group expects the business environment
in the near future to be faced with huge challenges.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

With its solid track record, experienced management team,
established brand influence and continuous innovation ability,
the Group will be fully prepared for sustainable and healthy
development amid such a challenging external business
environment.

The Group will closely monitor changes in the economic
environment, so as to evaluate its business strategies to
cope with the market challenges in a timely manner, ensure
the Group's sustainable and steady development and grasp
opportunities to enhance its long-term growth potential in the
future, as well as to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue decreased by approximately RMB48,240,000 or
26.4% from approximately RMB182,681,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB134,441,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020, primarily due to the
decrease in revenue from colour paste, finishes products,
which was partially offset by the increase in revenue from
colour chips products.

In 2019 and 2020, revenue from colour paste accounted for
approximately 44.7% and approximately 33.3%, respectively,
of total revenue; revenue from colour chips accounted for
approximately 9.1% and approximately 20.6%, respectively,
of total revenue; revenue from finishes accounted for
approximately 31.6% and approximately 28.0%, respectively,
of total revenue; revenue from additives accounted for
approximately 1.6% and approximately 3.3%, respectively,
of total revenue; and revenue from synthetic resins of the
Group accounted for approximately 13.0% and approximately
14.8%, respectively, of total revenue.

The Group mainly sells its products to customers in the PRC.
Most of the revenue of the Group was derived from sales
in the PRC, which accounted for approximately 98.0% and
98.3%, respectively, of its total revenue for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2020.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of sales

Cost of sales decreased by approximately RMB17,844,000
or 14.8% from approximately RMB120,686,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB102,842,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020, mainly due to the
increase in product cost.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit decreased by RMB30,396,000 or
49.0% from approximately RMB61,995,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB31,599,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020. Gross profit margin decreased
to 23.5% for the year ended 31 December 2020 from 33.9%
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease in the
gross profit margin was mainly due to: (i) the decrease in our
overall revenue; (i) the decrease in the average selling prices
of certain of our products; and (iii) the increase in the average
purchase prices of raw materials, primarily resulting from the
increase in the average purchase prices of polymers, solvents
and pigments for the year.

Other revenue

Other revenue mainly represented government grants and
bank interest income. The Group’s other revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB4,234,000,
while other revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019
was approximately RMB2,833,000. Such change was mainly
due to the increase in interest income generated from
the listing capital during the Reporting Period, which was
increased by approximately RMB1,221,000 as compared with
the same period last year.

Other gains

The other gains increased by approximately RMB940,000 from
the gains of approximately RMB25,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately RMB965,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020, mainly due to the increase in the
exchange gain.
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses for the year ended
31 December 2020 was approximately RMB7,128,000,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB370,000 or
4.9% from approximately RMB7,498,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019. The decrease in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in overall sales.

Selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31
December 2020 accounted for 5.3% (2019: approximately
4.1%) of the revenue of the Group.

Administrative and general expenses

Administrative and general expenses for the year ended
31 December 2020 were approximately RMB19,374,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB3,160,000 or
19.5% from approximately RMB 16,214,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019.

The increase in administrative and general expenses was mainly
due to the increase in professional services fees for engaging
intermediaries after listing.

Administrative and general expenses for the year ended 31
December 2020 accounted for 14.4% (2019: approximately
8.9%) of the revenue of the Group.

Finance costs

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2020 were
approximately RMB486,000, representing an decrease of
approximately RMB186,000 or 27.7% from approximately
RMB672,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019. It was
mainly due to the decrease in interest expenses of the bank
borrowings during the year.

Income tax expenses

Nk

Zhejiang Sunlight Material Technology Co., Ltd.* (7T /& & %
MEEHEEBR A A]) (“Zhejiang Sunlight”), a subsidiary of the
Company in Mainland China, is recognised as a High and New
Technology Enterprise and entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15% for the PRC Enterprise Income tax. Income tax expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2020 were approximately
RMB369,000, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB4,483,000 or 92.4% from approximately RMB4,852,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019, mainly due to (i) the
listing expenses recorded by the Group (excluding the listing
expenses which were one-off in nature), and (ii) decrease in
revenue in 2020.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(Loss)/profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
a net loss of approximately RMB3,157,000, as compared to a
net profit of approximately RMB24,124,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019. The loss was mainly due to the incurrence
of listing expenses and decrease in revenue during 2020.
The adjusted net profit was approximately RMB7,089,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared to
RMB35,761,000 for the same period of last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’'s current assets were
approximately RMB170,661,000, mainly comprising cash and
bank balances, inventories and trade and bills receivables
of approximately RMB79,641,000, RMB17,994,000 and
RMB69,484,000 respectively.

The Group's current liabilities were approximately
RMB25,972,000, of which approximately RMB19,946,000 was
trade and bills payables and approximately RMB5,693,000 was
other payables and accruals.

The current ratio (the ratio of current assets to current
liabilities) increased from approximately 2.1 times as at 31
December 2019 to approximately 6.6 times as at 31 December
2020. The change in the current ratio was mainly due to the
increase in cash from the listing proceeds.

As at 31 December 2020 or the date of this annual report, the
Group had no other debt financing commitments, nor was it in
breach of any financial covenant.

Charge of assets/pledge of assets

As of 31 December 2020, we did not have any charge of
assets or pledge of assets.

Borrowings

As of 31 December 2020, we did not have any outstanding
bank loans and other borrowings.

Capital expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group's capital expenditure
was approximately RMB20,553,000, representing an increase
of approximately RMB15,407,000 as compared to that of
RMB5,146,000 in 2019. Capital expenditure relates primarily
to the purchase of plant and equipment, right-of-use asset and
prepayment for property, plant and equipment.
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Cash flows

The Group’s cash was mainly used for operating cost in the
PRC, capital expenses and repayment of debts. Taking into
account the internal resources cash from operations and
the estimated net proceeds from the Global Offering, the
Group has sufficient working capital to meet its liquidity
needs. Any significant decrease in the demand for or the
price of its products and services may have an adverse effect
on its liquidity. As at 31 December 2020, the cash and cash
equivalents held by the Group represented mainly bank and
cash on hand denominated in Renminbi.

The following table sets out the cash flows for the periods
indicated:

RERE

AEENRETEZANPEMNZERAE
BEARREERT EEIELMENA
MERRE ARG RMAKEZREER
BRMERIAFR NEEARHNEE
EeRAUmERBDESRT K -HEMK
RIEWFERERBEBREIRAETIE 57
BEURBESERTMEE - 102020512
A3ME  AEBAEHNRE LA EEY
TERNARBENRITLTHERS

TREFHINFIRHRNRERE

For the year ended
31 December

BZ12A318LLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Net cash generated from operating & & /EEFF18IE 4 F5E
activities 8,513 7,185
Net cash used in investing activities & & /EENFTHIR & /55 (19,072) (6,051)
Net cash generated from financing MEEZHMERE FE
activities 76,803 3,181
Net increase in cash and cash He KA EEBYFEE N
equivalents 66,244 4,315
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FARHIEE RIBLSZED
of the year 79,641 14,226
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(a) Net cash generated from operating activities

For the year ended 31 December 2020, net cash
generated from operating activities was approximately
RMB8,513,000, higher than net cash generated from
operating activities of approximately RMB7,185,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019, mainly due to the
decrease in working capital occupation such as trade and
bills receivables.

(b) Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities was approximately
RMB6,051,000 and RMB19,072,000, respectively, for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020. Such changes
was mainly due to the investment in the purchase of
property, plant and equipment and acquisition of land
use right in 2020.

(c) Net cash generated from financing activities

Net cash generated from financing activities increased
from approximately RMB3,181,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately RMB76,803,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020, mainly due to increase
in funds raised from listing, which was partially offset by
borrowing repayments.

Capital commitment

The capital commitments not provided for in the condensed
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2020 were approximately RMB356,000 and
RMB11,486,000 respectively, which represented the purchase
of plant and machinery and automation transformation
contracts.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio is the ratio of net debt divided by total
equity. Net debt is calculated as total debt net of cash and cash
equivalents. As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a
net cash position (31 December 2019: 4.39%), as a result of
the reduction in bank and other borrowing and increase in
cash from the listing proceeds.
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Capital structure

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had a total of
1,000,000,000 shares of US$0.0005 each in issue (the
“Shares”). The shares of the Company were listed on the
Stock Exchange on 12 March 2020 by way of the Hong Kong
public offering and the international placing (the “Global
Offering”) and 250,000,000 Shares were issued at a price
of HK$0.52 per Share. The Group generally finances its daily
operations with internally generated resources and banking
facilities. The interest rates of the borrowings are charged by
reference to prevailing market rates.

Significant investment, acquisition and disposal

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not hold any
significant investment or carry out any material acquisition or
disposal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, we did not record any material hire
purchase commitments, contingent liabilities, guarantees or
litigations against us.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK AND MANAGEMENT

The Group’s sales and purchases are mainly denominated
in RMB. The Group retains some of its foreign currency
denominated funds, which are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Fluctuations in exchange rates have an impact on
the foreign currency reserve and the Company is exploring and
discussing measures to cope with the foreign exchange risk.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not enter into any
financial instruments to hedge foreign exchange.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 150
employees in the PRC. The Group offers its employees
competitive remuneration packages based on industry
practices and the performance of individual employees. Year-
end discretionary bonuses may be granted to reward and
motivate those well-performed employees.

As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group
participates in various employee social security plans for
our employees that are administered by local governments,
including housing, pension, medical insurance, maternity
insurance and unemployment insurance. The Group believes
that it maintains a good working relationship with its
employees.

The Group has not adopted defined contribution schemes.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report

BRERE

HZE2020F12A318 A aléaHh
1,000,000,000% + & [i% [ {E0.00053 7T K9
BETRG ([BRE)) BRBEBLAAES
NEBRRE ([ZRBE]) A28 RkHORN
2020F3 A 12 BB AP LT - & %0.52
B ITHIB % 3£77250,000,000 0% IR 17 » AN &
E—RAANSEEERLEITHREAB
PEBREES -BRNFERDLXERT
45 F = YER o

EARE - WBREE
RBERN AEBYEFAFERERNR
BETERNERKBRHE-

RAREE

72020912 A318 » AW E &S (T &
ANHEBAE sKABE  ERIHERMZ
(R EEi/ND

SER R ERE
AEENHERRKBIEUNARERE-
KEBDBEFEIXDANIINEFENE S £
EEBTL -EXNEHHEINEESHES
—TEFE ANRRIEERRE L ELHIN
M & b A9 F& B o 7R2020F12 A31H - A&
B3 AT SR 2 it T R LA¥ R INE o

ABEIR

MR2020F 128318 AEBRHPEKESE
150%1E 8 - AEBMERITEREN & ERE
BMRBLAEERHBERF NNFTHEFE
I 7] BE & K B F A4S B B TE AT LA 22 B K2 3B
FREENEE -

BRPBUARRERRTE A& BB
MEESEZEMTBNEENRELS
RIEFHE BEER BRRE BRERR-
EERBERERR NEERRSEEE
ERFBRIFOTIEBE-

7K 52 B 30 AR BR 40 E BE (KA &



Management Discussion and Analysis

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to declare the final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate
Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) as its own corporate governance code.
The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view to
becoming a transparent and responsible organisation which is
open and accountable to the Shareholders. The Board strives
for adhering to the principles of corporate governance and
has adopted sound corporate governance practices to meet
the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas such
as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to all
Shareholders to ensure the transparency and accountability of
all operations of the Group.

The Company believes that effective corporate governance
is essential for creating greater value to its Shareholders. The
Board will continue to review and improve the corporate
governance practices of the Group from time to time to ensure
that the Group is led by an effective Board in order to optimise
return for Shareholders. Since the Listing Date and up to the
date of this annual report, the Group has strictly complied with
the Corporate Governance Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions since
the Listing Date. Following a specific enquiry made by the
Company with each of the Directors, all of them confirmed
that they had complied with the required standards as set out
in the Model Code from the Listing Date up to the date of this
annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required by the Listing
Rules since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report. The Company maintained the minimum level of public
float of 25% of its total issued share capital.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, no important events affecting the Group have
occurred after the end of the Reporting Period.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING AND USES OF
PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 12 March 2020. Net proceeds from the Global
Offering is approximately RMB72.4 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$84.7 million). According to the purposes
set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 27
February 2020 (the “Prospectus”), (i) approximately 60.0%
of the proceeds from the Global Offering will be used for the
construction of a new production plant and the purchase of
new machinery and equipment; (ii) approximately 16.4% of
the proceeds will be used for strengthening the automation
system; (iii) approximately 21.8% of the proceeds will be used
for enhancing research and development capabilities, hiring
experts and engineers and acquiring research and development
equipment and testing equipment; and (iv) approximately
1.8% of the proceeds will be used as general operating costs.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Company had settled and
utilised a total of approximately RMB20.9 million for the
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The business objectives, future plans and planned use of
proceeds as stated in the Prospectus were based on the best
estimation and assumption of future market conditions made
by the Group at the time of preparing the Prospectus while
the actual proceeds were applied based on the development
of the Group’s business and industry. The unutilised net
proceeds have been placed as interest bearing deposits in
banks. The Group intends to use them in the same manner
and proportions as described in the Prospectus. The expected
completion timeline for utilising the remaining unused net
proceeds is set out below:

BIERRPIER R B 1R « RIRETEI LTS
RIEFE ARG DERASERHEBRE
T2 BRI R R A ET RARER M E -
MERMSERACSREATEER RITE
MR T AR - REAAASRIBFREE
AR ERFRRRIT ANEEFIZBRE
2 At 9 AR R 07 20 S e D B A e 5 R0 ©
B 84 T R B SRR 1) TR B 52 Ak B ) R 8K
SIEATR -

Expected timeline for utilising the remaining
unused net proceeds (Note)

BAB TN RBAMEREFENEYRER ()

Establishment of New Production Plant

FEZMEERE

Enhancing automation system of our existing Jiande
Production Plant

BEHRMREREEREERFHBEEBLRLS

Strengthening our research and development
capabilities

38 58 T APT HO BT 2 AE

Note: The expected timeline for utilising the unutilised net proceeds
is based on the best estimation of the future market conditions
made by the Group. It may be subject to change based on the
current and future development of market conditions.

The difference between the actual use of net proceeds and
the planned use of net proceeds was due to adjustment in the
timing of the spending to better suit our growth and business
needs.
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SCOPE OF WORK OF HLB HODGSON IMPEY
CHENG LIMITED

The figures set out in the consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the related notes thereto disclosed
in the annual results announcement of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have been agreed by the Company’s
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, to the amounts
set out in the Group's audited consolidated financial
statements for the year and the amounts were found to be
in agreement. The work performed by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited in this respect did not constitute an assurance
engagement in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing, Hong Kong Standards on Review Engagements or
Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and consequently no assurance has been expressed by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF ANNUAL
RESULTS

The Company has established the audit committee (the " Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Listing Rules to fulfil the functions of reviewing and
monitoring the financial reporting and internal control of the
Company. The Audit Committee currently consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ho Ho Tung
Armen, Mr. Tian Jingyan and Ms. Yu Zhen, and Mr. Ho Ho
Tung Armen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of
the Company this annual results and the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing,
risk management, internal control and financial statements
matters, including the review of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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PUBLICATION OF ANNUAL RESULTS
ANNOUNCEMENT AND ANNUAL REPORT ON
THE WEBSITES OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
AND THE COMPANY

The annual results announcement has been published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.com.hk) and the
Company (www.slkj.cn). The annual report of the Company for
the Reporting Period, which contains all information required
by the Listing Rules, will be dispatched to the Company’s
shareholders and published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in due course.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM") will be
held on Tuesday, 25 May 2021, while the notice and circular
convening the AGM will be published and dispatched to the
Shareholders in the form required in the Listing Rules in due
course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the
Shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 20
May 2021 to Tuesday, 25 May 2021, both days inclusive.

During this period, no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, the
non-registered Shareholders must lodge all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates for registration
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 18 May 2021.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to sincerely express its sincere gratitude
for shareholders, management team, employees, business
partners and customers of the Group for their support and
contribution to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMOLUMENT POLICIES FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
determined on the basis of their merits, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended
by the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”), having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance,
experience, responsibility, workload and time devoted to
the Company and comparable market statistics information.
Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary
which is reviewed annually. In addition, each of the executive
Directors may receive a discretionary bonus as the Board may
recommend, subject to the approval by the Remuneration
Committee.

The Company has adopted the share option scheme on 10
February 2020 (the “Share Option Scheme”), which became
effective on the Listing Date and no option had been granted
by the Company up to the date of this annual report. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to give the Eligible
Persons an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company and help motivate them to optimize their future
performance and efficiency to the Group and/or to reward
them for their past contributions, to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain on-going cooperation and relationships
with such Eligible Persons who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance,
growth or success of the Group, and in the case of executives,
to enable the Group to attract and retain individuals with
experience and ability and/or to reward them for their past
contributions.

Pursuant to B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
remuneration paid by the Group to members of senior
management by bands for the year ended 31 December 2020
is set out below:
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Liu Jing (8|8« 1), aged 49, is the chairman of
our Board and an executive Director. She is also one of our
Controlling Shareholders. She joined Zhejiang Sunlight in
March 2010 as a director. She is responsible for formulating
the corporate and business strategies of our Group and
overseeing overall business administration. Ms. Liu is the
spouse of Mr. Chen Hua, an executive Director and one of our
Controlling Shareholders.

Ms. Liu obtained a diploma in law from Zhejiang University
(/T KE)  of the PRC in December 2004 in a self-study
higher education programme and a master degree in business
administration from Edinburgh Napier University of the United
Kingdom in November 2007. Ms. Liu was conferred the
qualification of Registered Real Estate Appraiser* (FEffiE
HEHERD) by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of the PRC* (AR ZE A & H BT F A 4L 2%
#B) since November 1997.

From May 1998 to March 2002, Ms. Liu worked at Zhejiang
Expressway Co., Ltd.* (MIEBMEBERRABEROARA
A]) , which was principally engaged in investing in, developing
and operating expressways in the PRC, participating in
administrative function. From March 2002 to December 2009,
Ms. Liu worked at Zhejiang Hengxin Real Estate And Land
Valuation Company Limited* (/LS FE HE L a7 (&
BMR7F]), a company providing valuation services for land
and buildings in the PRC, as an administrative vice-manager
responsible for human resources matters and administrative
functions. Since November 2009, Ms. Liu has been a supervisor
of Zhejiang Hengxin Real Estate And Land Valuation Company
Limited* (WIEEFEHETHFFEBRAF) . Since May
2016, Ms. Liu has been an executive director, general manager
and legal representative of Huzhou Milan.

Mr. Chen Hua (BRES4%), aged 47, is an executive
Director, executive director and general manager of
Zhejiang Sunlight, and a director of Darkblue Technology
and HongKong Gorgeous. He is also one of our Controlling
Shareholders. Mr. Chen is responsible for overseeing our day-
to-day management and business operation, formulating
business strategies and making major operational decisions
of our Group. Mr. Chen is the spouse of Ms. Liu Jing, the
chairman of our Board, an executive Director and one of our
Controlling Shareholders.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chen was awarded a bachelor degree in mechanical
engineering from Zhejiang University (/T KE) of the
PRC in June 1995. He was awarded the qualification of
senior economist* (= ARLLERD) by the Zhejiang Province
Economic Series Advanced Professional Technical Positions
Employment Qualification Review Committee* (77T %4 &%
RIS REERMBBEBREBRNTEEZES) in December
2018. Mr. Chen has been engaged in the chemical engineering
industry for more than 19 years. From January 2000 to May
2006, Mr. Chen was employed by Hangzhou Rainbow Colour
Paste Co., Ltd.* (FUNKELEBHEERAF ), a manufacturer of
colourants, resins, finishes and additives for synthetic leather
and textiles, as a general manager. Mr. Chen joined Zhejiang
Sunlight in July 2006 and took up positions as a director and
the general manager. Mr. Chen was also the general manager
of Huzhou Milan, a then manufacturer of chemical products,
from January 2005 to July 2006, responsible for its overall
management and formulation of business strategies, and was
its supervisor from November 2007 to July 2010, respectively.

Ms. Zhu Jiangin (%&RZEZZ L), aged 52, is an executive
Director. She is also a chief engineer of Zhejiang Sunlight
responsible for overseeing and monitoring our research and
development functions, technical know-how management
and technology innovation. She is also one of our Controlling
Shareholders. Ms. Zhu obtained a bachelor degree in chemical
engineering from Zhejiang Institute of Technology* (4T
TE2PT) (now known as Zhejiang University of Technology*
(T IZE¥KE)) of the PRC in July 1991. She obtained a
qualification for professorate senior engineer* (iR &= &M
T#260) from the Department of Human Resources and Social
Security of Zhejiang Province* (I & A &R & (RIE
E&) of the PRC in December 2017. She was awarded as one
of Deqging County Top Ten Technology Innovation Leaders for
2010* ("20105F E 12/ % T EXRMAIF HHEA") from the
Deqing County General Union* (fE/5&#ET<) .

Ms. Zhu joined our Group in January 2006 and is currently
one of our chief engineers. Ms. Zhu has over 18 years of
experience in the chemical engineering and colourants
business. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zhu worked for
Hangzhou Rainbow Colour Paste Co., Ltd.* (fu/l &
#EPRAT), a manufacturer of colourants, resins, finishes
and additives for synthetic leather and textiles, from March
2000 to October 2004. Ms. Zhu was an engineer of Huzhou
Milan, a then manufacturer of chemical products, responsible
for product development from November 2004 to December
2005, and has been its supervisor since September 2016.

*  For identification purpose only
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EENGREEEBE

Mr. Li Xiangyu (BFEF5%4%), aged 55, is an executive
Director, and a chief engineer and supervisor of Zhejiang
Sunlight responsible for overseeing and monitoring our
research and development functions, technical know-how
management and technology innovation. He is also one of
our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Li graduated from East
China Institute of Chemical Technology* (#EH{v T £x)
(currently known as East China University of Science and
Technology* (ZFERIZE T KE)) of the PRC with a bachelor
degree in fine chemicals, specialising in intermediates and
dyes, in July 1987. He obtained a qualification of senior
engineer* (E#AM THEAHD) from the Department of Human
Resources and Social Security of Zhejiang Province* (7T
BEANERMEE(RERE) of the PRC in November 2011.
Mr. Li has over 27 years of experience of chemical engineering
and overseeing the synthetic leather products business. Mr.
Li joined our Group in January 2006 and is currently one of
our chief engineers. Prior to joining our Group, he worked in
Zhejiang Hangyi Synthetic Leather Company Limited* (7T
MEAKEARAAE), a manufacturer of synthetic leather,
from April 1992 to July 2001. Subsequently, he worked for
Hangzhou Rainbow Colour Paste Co., Ltd.* (M4 247
BB AA]), a manufacturer of colourants, resins, finishes and
additives for synthetic leather and textiles, from August 2001
to August 2004, with his duties of work also including research
and development. Mr. Li was an engineer of Huzhou Milan,
a then manufacturer of chemical products, responsible for
product development, between November 2004 and December
2005, and was its executive director, manager and legal
representative from July 2010 to April 2016.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian Jingyan (HSE%4), aged 60, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in February 2020. He
had been an independent director of Zhejiang Sunlight from
August 2016 to December 2018. Mr. Tian has been a Deputy
Secretary-General of Artificial Leather and Synthetic Leather
Professional Committee of China Plastic Processing Industry
Association* (HREIZBHINTIIXHEAEFEXNEEES
Bg) since May 2018. He has been the Secretary-General
of the Artificial Leather and Synthetic Leather Standardisation
Working Group of National Technical Committee on Plastic
Products of Standardisation Administration of China* (&
PREMBECRMEZEG NEREREZELTIIEAE) since
February 2018. Mr. Tian obtained a certificate of completion
of training for senior management of listed companies* ( -
MARERERABEINEZEZE) from Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (RIIFEHZ SFT) in the PRC in October 2011.
He has completed training as a checker of the standardised
work process for China national light industry* (F B T %
ZRE{TEEZE) of China National Light Industry Council*
(FREE TEBA2) in December 2016. Mr. Tian was also a
visiting professor of the Resources and Environment Institute*
(BRERIBEPRL) of Shaanxi University of Science and
Technology* (PREERIFXAZ) of the PRC from April 2013 to
April 2016.

Mr. Tian was an independent director of Shanghai Huafon
Fiber (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (LEBEEBEMBRNDER R
7)) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 300180)) from January 2010 to June 2015. Mr. Tian has
served as an independent director of Shandong Tongda Island
New Materials Co., Ltd.* (LUERRBEXEGSFHMERG ER A
7)) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 300321)) since June 2014, an independent director of
Kunshan Xiefu Artificial Leather Co., Ltd.* (B IL#pF# i
& ERATF)) since May 2015, and an independent director
of Guangzhou Pochely New Materials Technology Co., Ltd.*
(EMESFMHABBERMDBBRAR) (@ company listed
on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations System
(stock code: 834684)) from June 2017 to September 2018.
Since January 2021, he has been an independent director of
Guangzhou Pochely New Materials Technology Co., Ltd.* (&
MBS MBI AR LA .

*  For identification purpose only
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EENGREEEBE

Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen (&R %&4%), aged 44, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director in
February 2020. Mr. Ho received a MBA degree from the
University of Chicago Booth School of Business, a Master
of Science degree in financial economics from University
of London and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
accountancy from City University of Hong Kong. He is currently
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Ho has been an independent non-executive director of
Stream Ideas Group Limited (stock code: 8401) since the
company’s listing in March 2018. Mr. Ho is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Tianyun International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 6836), since February 2015. Prior
to that, Mr. Ho was the chief financial officer of Tuenbo Group
Limited and held various senior positions in Wisdom Asset
Management Limited, Hermes Capital Limited and Evolution
Group Limited (now known as Investec Group) specialized
in asset management, private equity, and corporate finance.
Mr. Ho also worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong,
KPMG UK and Grant Thornton Corporate Finance UK from
1998 to 2006 specialising in audit, advisory and corporate
finance.

Ms. Yu Zhen (MiE Z 1), aged 33, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in February 2020. Ms. Yu
was awarded a doctorate degree in labour economics from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law* (# & B 4£E R
AEARE) of the PRC in December 2016. She has extensive
knowledge in labours and economics, such as the correlation
between labours and productivity and human resources
management. She has been a lecturer in Zhejiang University of
Finance and Economics* (T BI4EKE) since May 2017.

*  For identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. He Zhangcai (M EBR %), aged 47, is the chief
financial officer of our Group. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the financial operations of our Group. He is also
one of our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. He was awarded
a bachelor degree in economic and business administration
from Chongqging University (EEKZ) of the PRC in
January 2009 through participation in its partial online course.
He was conferred the qualification of accountant* (&%t
BM) by the MOF in May 1998. Mr. He has over 17 years of
experience in the chemical engineering industry. He joined
Zhejiang Sunlight in December 2005, with his current position
being a finance manager. Since June 2000 and prior to joining
Zhejiang Sunlight, Mr. He worked in various manufacturers
of colourants, resins, finishes and additives for synthetic
leather and textiles and chemical products, taking up financial
responsibilities, including Huzhou Milan where he also served
as its executive director, manager and legal representative from
November 2007 to July 2010.

Mr. Cai Jianming (¥EBH%4%), aged 54, is a deputy
general manager of Zhejiang Sunlight responsible for
overseeing the production management of our Group. He is
also one of our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Cai obtained
an advanced level certificate in the advanced level study of
business administration for growing small to medium size
business enterprises* (K ERAEF/NESHTEHERFIEI
SARHEEE) awarded by Zhejiang University (7T X
E) of the PRC in May 2014. He was awarded Deging County
Excellent Employee at Hard Times* (fZ/5%BREEHES
B, T) by the Deging County General Trade Union* ({25

SZ4T€) in April 2010 and The Most Beautiful Meicheng
Citizen* (MBI EZEMIMA) by Meicheng Town People’s

Government* in November 2017 (183 E A REAT) . Mr.
Cai joined our Group in January 2006 and was appointed to
be a manufacturing manager of Zhejiang Sunlight in January
2007. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cai was employed by
Hangzhou Rainbow Colour Paste Co., Ltd.* (#g /M F 4T & 4%
BFEA7F]), a manufacturer of colourants, resins, finishes and
additives for synthetic leather and textiles, from August 2001
to October 2004. He was a manager of Huzhou Milan, a then
manufacturer of chemical products, between November 2004
and December 2005 overseeing the production department.

*  For identification purpose only
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EENGREEEBE

Mr. Zhao Xuesheng (HEEE%4), aged 49, is a deputy
general manager of Zhejiang Sunlight responsible for
overseeing the sales and marketing functions of our Group. He
is also one of our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Zhao joined
our Group in January 2006 taking up sales and marketing
responsibilities and was promoted to the position of deputy
general manager in August 2016. Mr. Zhao obtained a diploma
in applied chemistry from Zhejiang University (H/Z AZ2)

of the PRC in June 1994. He was qualified as junior assistant
economist* (¥R BNIRLLFRD) Dby the Hangzhou Personnel
Bureau* (#U/MAZEE) in July 1997. Prior to joining our
Group, he was employed by Zhejiang Weier Da Chemical
Co., Ltd.* OCHIEMBE/WLLIBRAE), a manufacturer of
pesticides, insecticides, acaricides, fungicides and herbicides,
from January 1999 to June 2002, with his last position being
a district sales manager. Afterwards, he was employed by
Hangzhou Rainbow Colour Paste Co., Ltd.* (fu/l &
AR /AT]) a manufacturer of colourants, resins, finishes
and additives for synthetic leather and textiles, from April
2002 to November 2003, with his last position being a district
sales manager. From October 2004 to January 2008, Mr. Zhao
worked for Huzhou Milan, a then manufacturer of chemical
products, taking up sales and marketing responsibilities.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Chen Weibo (FBREKELE), aged 47, is one of the
joint company secretaries of our Group. He joined our Group
as a board secretary of Zhejiang Sunlight in July 2016 and
was appointed as a joint company secretary of our Company
in April 2019. Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor degree in
accounting from Zhejiang Institute of Finance and Economics*
(HTE 4 EB) (now known as Zhejiang University of
Finance and Economics* (HIIBA&EKE)) of the PRC in
July 1995. Mr. Chen was conferred the qualification of senior
accountant by the Zhejiang Province Human Resources and
Social Security Department* (HT)I& A D& RIS RE
EZ) in April 2009. Mr. Chen became a non-practising member
of the Zhejiang Institute of Certified Public Accountants* (i
TEAFMEs A% E) in December 2009. Mr. Chen was
awarded the ACCA Advanced Diploma in Accounting and
Business by the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in June 2017. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. He worked at the
overseas division of Zhejiang Construction Investment Group
Company Limited* (WIEZZREEEFR AR from
September 1995 to June 2006, with his last position being an
accountant. He was employed by Zhejiang Zhongda Sanchuan
Hydropower Development Co., Ltd.* (#7/TA K =)I|/KE 3
BAERAF) from July 2006 to August 2009, with his last
position being chief financial officer. He re-joined the overseas
division of Zhejiang Construction Investment Group Company
Limited* (M IEEREESEEBRAR) in September
2013 and was employed as the deputy manager of its finance
department in October 2013 and remained at office until June
2016.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES OF THE
COMPANY

Mr. Chen Weibo (BREESE4E), aged 47, was appointed
as one of the joint company secretaries of our Company in
April 2019. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Senior
management” above for details of Mr. Chen’s qualifications
and experience.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Lui Chi Ho (BEZE%E4%), aged 48, was appointed as
one of the joint company secretaries of our Company in April
2019. Mr. Lui is a partner of INCE & CO, a law firm in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lui has been admitted as a solicitor to the High
Court of Hong Kong since 1999. He was also admitted as a
solicitor to the Supreme Court of England and Wales in 2004.
Mr. Lui is @ member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
and is an accredited mediator of Hong Kong International
Arbitration Centre. Mr. Lui is also a China Appointed Attesting
Officer, a member of the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal Panel
and the chairman of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings).
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Reporting Period. Certain information set out in this annual
report are disclosed up to the date of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other details of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. Pursuant to the requirements of
Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”),
further discussion and analysis of the principal activities of
the Group (including the business review of the Group and
the description of the potential business development of the
Group) are set out in the management discussion and analysis
of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Business Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s principal business activity is the manufacturing
and sales of faux leather chemicals, whose principal risks
include the quality of the products and the security during
production. The Group has taken comprehensive measures to
ensure that both quality and security will meet the industry
standards. The fluctuation of the development of the industry
has resulted in a significant impact on the Group's business
in the Year under Review. Please refer to the Chairman’s
Statement for further discussion on the business risks we face
and how we manage such risks.

Financial Risks

The Group’s main risks arising from its financial instruments are
interest rate and exchange rate risks, credit risk and liquidity
risk. Details of the financial risk management objectives and
policies are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Tax concession

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding the
securities of the Company.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and the development of the society.

Details of the Group’s development, performance and
operation in the environmental aspect are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group has adopted internal control and risk management
policies to monitor the on-going compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations. As far as the Board is concerned,
the Group had complied in all material aspects with the
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC, and did not have
any incidents of material non-compliance, and the Group
had obtained all relevant permits, approval documents,
qualifications, authorizations and approvals material to our
business operations.

Overall compliance

As at the date of this annual report, save as disclosed above,
there are no material pending or threatened litigation matters
or other proceedings involving the Group, and the Group is
not involved in any litigation or other proceedings that we
believe would materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operation.

Significant subsequent events

Save as disclosed in this annual report, subsequent to 31
December 2020, the following events took place:

On 22 March 2021 (after trading hours of the Stock
Exchange), the Company entered into the Placing Agreement
with the Placing Agent whereby the Company conditionally
agreed to place, through the Placing Agent, on a best effort
basis, up to 200,000,000 new Shares to not less than six
independent Placees at the Placing Price of HK$0.240 per
Placing Share.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's top five customers accounted for approximately
31.9% (2019: approximately 38.0%) of the total sales and
the top five suppliers accounted for approximately 27.1%
(2019: approximately 24.6%) of its total purchases for the
year. In addition, the Group's largest customer accounted
for approximately 8.1% (2019: approximately 13.7%) of the
total sales and the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 10.4% (2019: approximately 6.6%) of the total
purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, at no time during
the Year under Review, have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the share capital of
the Company) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group is in good relationship with its employees and
also has policies in place to ensure competitive remuneration,
well-developed welfare package and continuous professional
training for its employees. The Group also maintains a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers, without whom its
production and operation may be impaired.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had an authorised
share capital of 1,000,000,000 Shares with par value of
US$0.0005 each. For details, please refer to note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
The shares of the Company became listed on the Main Board

of the Stock Exchange on 12 March 2020 by way of the Global
Offering.

Since the Listing Date, none of the Company and its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.
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Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated.

DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has resolved not to declare the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Policy on payment of
dividend of the Company is in place setting out the factors in
determination of dividend payment of the Company, including
the Group’s actual and expected financial performance,
shareholders’ interests, retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Company and each of the other members
of the Group, the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio,
return on equity and financial covenants to which the Group
is subject, possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness,
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders, the Group expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans, liquidity position and
future commitments at the time of declaration of dividend,
taxation considerations, statutory and regulatory restrictions,
general business conditions and strategies, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group's business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the
Company; and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
The policy shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to the
Board for approval if amendments are required.

Directors’ service contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other and is subject to termination
provisions therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of
the Directors as set out in the Articles of Association.
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Remuneration of Directors and senior management

Each of our executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee.
Each of our executive Directors shall be paid a remuneration
on the basis of twelve months in a year. In addition, each of
our executive Directors is also entitled to bonus as determined
by the Board based on the recommendations made by our
Remuneration Committee. The current annual director’s fees
and remuneration of our executive Directors are as follows:

Each of our independent non-executive Directors has entered
into an appointment letter with our Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date and is
entitled to a director’s fee of HK$120,000 per annum.

In 2020, each of the executive Directors did not receive a
director’s fee.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (AND THEIR
CONNECTED ENTITIES) IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding companies, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year under Review and up to the date of
this annual report, none of the Directors and controlling
shareholders of the Company has any interest in any business
which competes, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
in which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be maintained pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, are set out as
follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of Long/short in the
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares position Company
BARRRE
% 56,/ BHHE ROBE  HA/ KR ZEOEAL
Mr. Chen Hua Interest in controlled corporation and 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
interest of spouse Motes 1-2)
RELLE R EEER L EER 2 e
Ms. Liu Jing Interest in controlled corporation and 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
interest of spouse Motes 1-2)
F L+ Ry rE ks R BER e 5
Ms. Zhu Jiangin Interest in controlled corporation Mete 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
REEa+ Ry EE R e A
Mr. Li Xiangyu Interest in controlled corporation MotV 665,500,000  Long position 66.55%
BrRFEE R{pEE R e e
Mr. He Zhangcai Interest in controlled corporation et 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
MEHEAE Ry R E s e 5]
Mr. Zhao Xuesheng Interest in controlled corporation Mete 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
HERLSE R B R R A
Mr. Cai Jianming Interest in controlled corporation ®ote 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%

EEALLE
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Notes:

(1) As at the date of this annual report, Sunlight Global Investment
Limited (“Sunlight Global”) and Lilian Global Investment
Limited (“Lilian Global”) held 49.535% and 17.015%,
respectively, of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Sunlight Global is owned as to 61.20% by Mr. Chen Hua,
13.24% by Ms. Zhu Jiangin, 13.24% by Mr. Li Xiangyu, 9.24%
by Mr. He Zhangcai, 2.14% by Mr. Chen Yong, 0.54% by Mr.
Cai Jianming and 0.40% by Mr. Zhao Xuesheng. Lilian Global is
wholly-owned by Ms. Liu Jing. Ms. Liu is therefore deemed to
be interested in the Shares in which Lilian Global is interested
under the SFO. Mr. Chen Hua, Ms. Liu Jing, Ms. Zhu Jiangin,
Mr. Li Xiangyu, Mr. He Zhangcai, Mr. Zhao Xuesheng, Mr. Cai
Jianming and Mr. Chen Yong are entitled to exercise or control
the exercise of 66.55% of the voting power at general meetings
of our Company through exercising or controlling the exercise
of the entire voting power at general meetings of Sunlight
Global and Lilian Global, and therefore they are deemed to
be interested in the Shares in which Sunlight Global and Lilian
Global are interested under the SFO.

(2)  Mr. Chen Hua and Ms. Liu Jing are spouses to each other.
Therefore, each of them is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which he or she is interested under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be maintained
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at any time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18 were
granted any right to subscribe for the share capital or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate, or had
exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

To the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at
the date of this annual report, the following persons (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) have
the following interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were required pursuant to section 336
of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein.
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of Long/short shareholding in
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares position  the Company
BARRRE
=L 53/ EatE B4 & B ¥R/ %R ZBREIR
Sunlight Global Beneficial owner Metes 1. 3) 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
Sunlight Global EmEA A WE3) e
Lilian Global Beneficial owner Motes2.3) 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
Lilian Global BEmER A 23 e
Mr. Chen Hua Interest in controlled corporation Motes . 3) 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
Interest of spouse Mete 4 Long position 66.55%
RELLE R EE#ER W e
Fo B s (e e
Ms. Liu Jing Interest in controlled corporation Metes23) 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
Interest of spouse Mete4 Long position 66.55%
Ea L R EE R MH23) )
e B2 (e e
Ms. Zhu Jiangin Interest in controlled corporation Motes 1. 3) 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
ReEat R EE R ) 1A
Mr. Li Xiangyu Interest in controlled corporation Netes 1.3 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
BrRTEE R R Y 5]
Mr. He Zhangcai Interest in controlled corporation Motes 1. 3) 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
MEH LA RpEE R 3 tE
Mr. Zhao Xuesheng Interest in controlled corporation Netes 1.3 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
HEREE R EE R 3 5]
Mr. Cai Jianming Interest in controlled corporation Motes 1. 3) 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
BRBALLE RypEE R a3 e
Mr. Chen Yong Interest in controlled corporation Netes 1.3 665,500,000 Long position 66.55%
RBELLE REEE R Y 5]
RERBEZERBRAR —B-EFFR
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Notes:

1. Sunlight Global is owned as to 61.20% by Mr. Chen Hua,
13.24% by Ms. Zhu Jiangin, 13.24% by Mr. Li Xiangyu, 9.24%
by Mr. He Zhangcai, 2.14% by Mr. Chen Yong, 0.54% by Mr.
Cai Jianming and 0.40% by Mr. Zhao Xuesheng.

2. Lilian Global is wholly-owned by Ms. Liu Jing. Ms. Liu is
therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Lilian
Global is interested under the SFO.

3. Mr. Chen Hua, Ms. Liu Jing, Ms. Zhu Jiangin, Mr. Li Xiangyu,
Mr. He Zhangcai, Mr. Zhao Xuesheng, Mr. Cai Jianming and
Mr. Chen Yong are entitled to exercise or control the exercise
of 66.55% of the voting power at general meetings of our
Company through exercising or controlling the exercise of the
entire voting power at general meetings of Sunlight Global and
Lilian Global, and are therefore deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Sunlight Global and Lilian Global are interested
under the SFO.

4. Mr. Chen Hua and Ms. Liu Jing are spouses to each other.
Therefore, each of them is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which he or she is interested under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,
to the knowledge of the Directors, none of any other person
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company)
had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be
recorded in the register referred to in section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Participants (as defined below) had or may have
made to our Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the
Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake
in our Company with the view to achieving the following
objectives: (i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise
their performance efficiency for the benefit of our Group; (ii)
attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of our Group;
and (iii) for such purposes as our Board may approve from time
to time.

Who may join

Our Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as our Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph headed “Subscription price” below to the following
(the “Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive directors) of our Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, agents
and related entities to our Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under
any other share option schemes of our Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Global Offering,
being 100,000,000 Shares, excluding for this purpose Shares
which would have been issuable pursuant to the options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (or any other share option schemes of our Company).
Subject to the issue of a circular by our Company and the
approval of our Shareholders in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time, our Board may:

(i)  renew this limit at any time to 10% of the Shares in issue
as of the date of the approval by our Shareholders in
general meeting; and/or

(i) grant options beyond the 10% limit to Eligible
Participants specifically identified by our Board. The
circular issued by our Company to our Shareholders shall
contain a generic description of the specified Eligible
Participants who may be granted such options, the
number and terms of the options to be granted, the
purpose of granting options to the specified Eligible
Participants with an explanation as to how the options
serve such purpose, the information required under
Rule 17.02(2)(d) and the disclaimer required under Rule
17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of our Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options shall be granted under any schemes of our Company
(including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the
30% limit being exceeded. The maximum number of Shares in
respect of which options may be granted shall be adjusted, in
such manner as the auditors of our Company or an approved
independent financial adviser shall certify to be appropriate,
fair and reasonable in the event of any alteration in the capital
structure of our Company in accordance with paragraph (q)
below whether by way of consolidation, capitalisation issue,
rights issue, sub-division or reduction of the share capital of
our Company but in no event shall exceed the limit prescribed
in this paragraph.
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Maximum number of options for each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as of
the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to:

(i)

(ii)

the issue of a circular by our Company containing the
identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of
and terms of the options to be granted (and options
previously granted to such participant) the information
as required under Rules 17.03(4) and 17.06 of the Listing
Rules and/or such other requirements as prescribed under
the Listing Rules from time to time; and

the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting and/
or other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time with such Eligible Participant and his
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) if the Eligible
Participant is a Connected Person) abstaining from
voting. The numbers and terms (including the exercise
price) of options to be granted to such participant must
be fixed before our Shareholders’ approval and the date
of our Board meeting at which our Board proposes to
grant the options to such Eligible Participant shall be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating
the subscription price of the Shares. Our Board shall
forward to such Eligible Participant an offer document in
such form as our Board may from time to time determine.
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Grant of options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of our Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the options). If our Board proposes to grant options to a
substantial shareholder or any independent nonexecutive
Director or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) which will result in the number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% or such other
percentage as may be from time to time provided under
the Listing Rules of the Shares in issue;

(i) having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million or
such other sum as may be from time to time provided
under the Listing Rules, based on the official closing price
of the Shares at the date of each grant, such further
grant of options will be subject to the issue of a circular
by our Company and the approval of our Shareholders
in general meeting on a poll at which the grantee, his/
her associates and all core connected persons (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of our Company shall abstain
from voting in favour, and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time. Any
vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such
options shall be taken as a poll.

The circular to be issued by our Company to our Shareholders
pursuant to the above paragraph shall contain the following
information:

(i) the details of the number and terms (including the
exercise price) of the options to be granted to each
selected Eligible Participant which must be fixed before
our Shareholders’ meeting and the date of Board meeting
for proposing such further grant shall be taken as the
date of grant for the purpose of calculating the exercise
price of such options;
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(i) a recommendation from the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options) to the
independent shareholders as to voting;

(iii) the information required under Rule 17.02(2)(c) and (d)
and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules; and

(iv) the information required under Rule 2.17 of the Listing
Rules.

Performance targets and vesting conditions

A grantee may be required to achieve any performance targets
as our Board may then specify in the grant before any options
granted under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Subscription price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as our Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of
grant, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Term of the Share Option Scheme

An option is personal to the grantee and may be exercised or
treated as exercised, as the case may be, in whole or in part.
No grantee shall in any way sell, transfer, charge, mortgage,
encumber or create any interest (legal or beneficial) in favour
of any third party over or in relation to any option or attempt
so to do (save that the grantee may nominate a nominee in
whose name the Shares issued pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme may be registered). Any breach of the foregoing shall
entitle our Company to cancel any outstanding options or any
part thereof granted to such grantee.
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Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to our Company by way of consideration for the grant. Any
offer to grant an option to subscribe for Shares may be
accepted in respect of less than the number of Shares for
which it is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of
a board lot of dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an
integral multiple thereof and such number is clearly stated in
the duplicate offer document constituting the acceptance of
the option. To the extent that the offer to grant an option is
not accepted by any prescribed acceptance date, it shall be
deemed to have been irrevocably declined.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon
which the Option is deemed to be granted and accepted and
prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined
by our Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. No
option may be granted more than 10 years after the Listing
Date. Subject to earlier termination by our Company in general
meeting or by our Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the Listing
Date.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 12
March 2020 and the deed of non-competition undertakings
in respect of the controlling shareholders was entered into
on 10 February 2020 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”).
The controlling shareholder has confirmed to the Company
of his/her/its compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition
provided to the Company during the year. The independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of compliance
and also the confirmations by the controlling shareholder and,
on the basis of such confirmations, are of the view that the
controlling shareholder has complied with the Deed of Non-
Competition which has been enforced by the Company in
accordance with its terms.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions disclosed in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements constitute connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has confirmed that it has complied with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for these transactions.
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Transaction with connected persons

Hangzhou Qiyue Imvestment Management Co., Ltd.* (Fix/
BB EEEABRAR) (“Hangzhou Qiyue”) is held as to
100% by Mr. Chen Hua. Accordingly, Hangzhou Qiyue became
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

From 1 April 2018 to 31 May 2019, Hangzhou Qiyue
leased to Zhejiang Sunlight a portion of 16/F, Block E1, Zijin
Zhongchuang Small Town, No. 3, Xiyuan 8th Road, Sandun,
Xihu District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC* (A
BT AN MR =S E N\ B3R K REI/NE E1-16
&) with a lettable area of approximately 500 sg. m. (the
“Leased Premises”) for office and research and development
use without charge.

On 29 May 2019, Zhejiang Sunlight as lessee entered into
a lease agreement, as supplemented by a supplemental
lease agreement entered into on 28 November 2019, with
Hangzhou Qiyue as lessor for the lease of the Leased Premises
for office and research and development use (collectively, the
“Lease Agreement”). Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the
lease shall be for a term commencing on 1 June 2019 and
ending on 30 June 2020 at a monthly rent of RMB27,500
(excluding utilities and management fees) and renewable
with one-month prior written notice. On 30 June 2020, the
parties renewed the Lease Agreement with the lease term
commencing on 1 July 2020 and expiring on 30 June 2021,
with the remaining terms unchanged. The rent payable by
Zhejiang Sunlight under the Lease Agreement was determined
with reference to the prevailing market rent for similar
properties at the same development and in neighbouring areas
at which the Leased Premises are located. Our property valuer,
AVISTA Valuation Advisory Limited, has reviewed the Lease
Agreement and confirmed that the rent payable by Zhejiang
Sunlight under the Lease Agreement is fair and reasonable and
consistent with the market rent for similar premises in similar
locations.

*  For identification purpose only
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Confirmation from independent non-executive
Directors and the auditor of the Company

Confirmation from Directors

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) have reviewed and confirmed that for the year
ended 31 December 2020 the above continuing connected
transaction has been and will be entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of our Group’s business and are based on
normal commercial terms or better that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

Confirmation from auditor of the Company

Based on work performed, our independent auditor, has
confirmed in a letter to the Board to the effect that: (i) nothing
has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the
above transaction have not been approved by the Company’s
board of directors; (i) for transactions involving the provision
of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to its
attention that causes it to believe that the transaction was not
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group; (iii) nothing has come to its attention that causes
it to believe that the transaction was not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transaction; and (iv) with respect to the amounts
of the transaction, nothing has come to its attention that
causes it to believe that the transaction has exceeded the
annual caps as set by the Company. The Company confirms
that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

Annual contributions to retirement benefit schemes operated
by the government in the PRC are recognised in the profit or
loss as and when incurred.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high level of
corporate governance practices. Information about the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report in this annual
report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required by
the Listing Rules and at least 25% of the Company’s entire
issued share capital were held by the public from the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against the Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in
force for the benefit of the Directors (including any director(s)
resigned during the year) as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when the Directors’ Report prepared by
the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a)
of the Companies Ordinance.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
of the Company these annual results and the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
statements matters, including the review of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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AUDITOR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed as
the auditor of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has audited the
accompanying financial statements which were prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited is subject to retirement
and, being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for re-appointment of HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditor will be proposed at
the AGM.

By Order of the Board
Ms. Liu Jing
Chairman and executive Director

Hangzhou, PRC, 31 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

OVERVIEW

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so
as to achieve effective accountability to the shareholders as
a whole. The Board still strives to uphold good corporate
governance and adopts sound corporate governance practices.
Save as disclosed below, during the period from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020, the Company has applied the
principles and code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code and has complied with all the code provisions and the
recommended best practices, as appropriate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Board has adopted the principles and the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules to ensure that the
Company’s business activities and decision making processes
are regulated in a proper and prudent manner. The Board
confirmed that the Company has complied with the Corporate
Governance Code during the Report Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the required
standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that during the year ended 31 December
2020, they had complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of seven Directors, being four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

Meetings and members of the Board
Executive Directors

Ms. Liu Jing
Mr. Chen Hua
Ms. Zhu Jiangin
Mr. Li Xiangyu
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tian Jingyan
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen
Ms. Yu Zhen

Chairman

Ms. Liu Jing

All of the Directors are knowledgeable and have extensive
experience in the business of the Group. The biographies of
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report. As
far as the Company is aware, Mrs. Liu Jing, the chairman of
our Company, and Mr. Chen Hua, an executive Director, are
spouses to each other. The Company reviews the composition
of the Board from time to time, to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate to the Company’s
business, and the Board has a strong independent element to
safeguard the interests of Shareholders.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other and is subject to termination
provisions therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of
the Directors as set out in the Articles of Association.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors (including executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) shall retire from office
by rotation. Pursuant to A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

As the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company was
convened on 3 June 2020 and Directors were re-elected in the
meeting, the re-election of Directors for the year 2020 will be
proceeded in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, Ms.
Liu Jing served as the chairman of the Board. The position of
chief executive officer of the Company remains vacant. The
responsibilities of the chief executive officer are taken up
by Mr. Chen Hua, an executive Director. The Board believes
that this arrangement enables the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s
objectives efficiently. The Board also believes that the Company
already has a strong corporate governance structure in place to
ensure effective oversight of management.

TRAINING AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and maintenance of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enroll in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and
corporate governance practices organized by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

During the year, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development and refreshed their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. Such professional
development was completed by way of attending briefings,
conferences, courses, forums, seminars and lectures which are
relevant to the business or Directors’ duties, as well as reading
relevant information and participating in business-related
research.
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board held four
meetings.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with the
Articles of Association. The company secretary of the Company
(the "Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman to prepare
the agenda of the meeting and each Director may request to
include any matters in the agenda. Generally, notice would
be given for a regular meeting of the Company at least 14
days in advance. The Directors will receive details of agenda
items for decision at least 3 days before each Board meeting.
The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to each of the Directors prior to the meetings of
the Board to ensure that the Directors may receive accurate,
timely and clear information to make informed decisions
regarding the matters to be discussed in the meetings.
All Directors may access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on
governance and regulatory matters. All Directors will also be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for ensuring the procedures of Board meetings are
observed and providing the Board with opinions on matters
in relation to the compliance with the procedures of Board
meetings. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded
in sufficient details, including the matters considered by the
Board and the decisions reached.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company held four Board meetings. Details of the
attendance of each Director are as follows:

TRERBRSE

REEHAREERFRBE  XAFFH
FTAREFEEZ - SEFNHFEFBEN
T

Attendance
Name of Director EENA HE=R
Executive Directors HITEE
Ms. Liu Jing ZIFF 4/4
Mr. Chen Hua PR ZE S 4 4/4
Ms. Zhu Jiangin KESL+ 4/4
Mr. Li Xiangyu BRFEAE 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors B FHITEE
Mr. Tian Jingyan RERE 4/4
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen AER A 4/4
Ms. Yu Zhen =R g 4/4

BOARD COMMITTEES

We have established the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 10 February 2020. Each of the above three
committees has written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules. The functions of the above three committees
are summarised as follows:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

We established the Audit Committee. The audit committee
consists of Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen, Mr. Tian Jingyan and Ms.
Yu Zhen and is chaired by Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen, who has
the appropriate professional qualifications required under
the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
are to assist our Board by providing an independent view of
the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management system of our Group, to oversee
the audit process, to develop and review our policies and to
perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by our
Board.
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Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Audit Committee held two meeting to perform
the following functions: reviewing annual results, approving
the auditors’ proposal for audit, reviewing the auditors’
report, reviewing internal control policies, and reviewing the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control system.

BETEHEEAFHRAME BXEZE
SORT2RER BT NBE :FHE
FERE WERBENEZES FHEH
B ¥ 5 - 2R B ERIE HIBOR - A Rt st LR
IR ) BB I R ATRCRK o

Attendance
Name of Audit Committee Member ERZEERERR HE
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen (Chairman) fAVEREE (F/E) 3/3
Mr. Tian Jingyan HE&%E 3/3
Ms. Yu Zhen =g 3/3

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

We established the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Tian Jingyan, Mr.
Chen Hua and Ms. Yu Zhen and is chaired by Mr. Tian Jingyan.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to our Board regarding our policy
and structure for the remuneration of all of our Directors and
senior management.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. Details of the
attendance of each member are as follows

YHWEES
BMEEREMRARIFHEES A
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ERRMEREBEE RS R EEBNF
MR EBRESSIELER-

BETEHEEAFHRAME FHEZE
SLBRT - REH - -BHRENHFEFRLT
S

Attendance
Name of Remuneration Committee Member HMZE SR EHH HE
Mr. Tian Jingyan (Chairman) HeEatE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Chen Hua BeR 2 5 A 2/2
Ms. Yu Zhen gy 85 22 & 2/2

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Remuneration Committee had formulated the
remuneration policy for Directors, approved the terms of
service contracts of Directors and devised the principle for the
remuneration of executive Directors for 2020.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

We established the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee consists of Ms. Liu Jing, Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen
and Mr. Tian Jingyan and is chaired by Ms. Liu Jing. The
primary functions of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of our Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to our Board to
complement our Company’s corporate strategy, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
making recommendations to our Board on the appointment
of members of our Board and succession planning of our
Directors, and assessing the independence of our independent
non-executive Directors.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board, and conducted a full review
on the professional qualifications and career background of
all candidates to directorships and members of each Board
committee as well as the independence of the independent
Directors.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
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the Nomination Committee held one meeting. Details of the ERT-—ReZ FRENHEBEHBLOT
attendance of each member are as follows

Attendance
Name of Nomination Committee Member RBEAZESRENR HE
Ms. Liu Jing (Chairman) gL+ (XE) 2/2
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen fAER A 2/2
Mr. Tian Jingyan HARELEE 2/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen (Chairman)
Mr. Tian Jingyan
Ms. Yu Zhen

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Tian Jingyan (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Hua
Ms. Yu Zhen

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Liu Jing (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen
Mr. Tian Jingyan

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Company
to protect the overall interests of the Shareholders and
the Company. They serve actively on the Board and Board
committees to provide their independent and objective views.
In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors, representing more than one-third of the
Board. One of the independent non-executive Directors has the
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director
has submitted annual confirmation of his/her independence
to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Based on the contents of such confirmations, the Company
considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Chen Weibo and Mr. Lui Chi Ho are joint company
secretaries of the Company, whose biographies are set out
in the section headed “Biography of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Mr. Chen and Mr. Lui
have received no less than 15 hours of training on corporate
governance and other aspects in accordance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
DIVERSITY POLICY

We have adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve and maintain an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of our Board that are relevant to our
business growth.

Pursuant to our board diversity policy, selection of our Board
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service, and any other factors
that our Board may consider relevant and applicable from
time to time. High emphasis is placed on ensuring a balanced
composition of skills and experience at our Board level in order
to provide a range of perspectives, insights and challenge that
enable our Board to discharge its duties and responsibilities
effectively, support good decision making in view of the core
businesses and strategy of our Group, and support succession
planning and development of our Board. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to our Board.

Our Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring
the implementation of our board diversity policy. After the
Listing, our Nomination Committee will review our Board’s
composition at least once annually taking into account the
benefits of all relevant diversity aspects, and adhere to our
board diversity policy when making recommendation on any
Board appointments. Our Nomination Committee will also
ensure that diversity of our Board is considered as part of the
evaluation of our Board’s effectiveness. A summary of our
board diversity policy together with any measurable objectives
and specific diversity targets set for implementing the policy,
and the progress made towards achieving those objectives and
targets will be disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
contained in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

We have adopted or expect to adopt a set of risk management
measures and internal control policies to identify, evaluate and
manage risks arising from our operations prior to Listing. Our
internal control system is summarised as follows:

—  We have formed an Audit Committee comprising three
independent non-executive Directors as part of our
measures to improve corporate governance. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to provide our
Directors with an independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, internal control,
and risk management system of our Group, to oversee
the audit process, and to perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Directors;

—  We have adopted and implemented comprehensive
control policies in respect of various aspects of our
business operations such as (i) risk management policies;
(ii) conflict of interest guidelines; and (iii) disclosure
guidelines;

—  We shall establish system and manuals in relation to,
among others, distribution of annual or interim reports
and publication, handling and monitoring of inside
information prior to public announcement and other
requirements under the Listing Rules;

- Our Directors have attended training sessions conducted
by our legal advisers as to Hong Kong laws on the on-
going obligations and duties of a director of a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange;

- We will comply with the Corporate Governance Code. To
avoid potential conflicts of interest, we will implement
corporate governance measures as set out in the
paragraph headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders — Corporate governance measures” in
the Prospectus. Our Directors will review our corporate
governance measures and our compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code each financial year and
comply with the “comply or explain” principle in our
corporate governance reports to be included in our
annual reports after Listing;
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- We have engaged Giraffe Capital Limited as our
compliance adviser and will, upon Listing, engage a legal
adviser as to Hong Kong laws, which will advise and
assist our Board on compliance matters in relation to the
Listing Rules and/or other relevant laws and regulations
applicable to our Company; and

—  When considered necessary and appropriate, we will
seek professional advice and assistance from independent
internal control consultants, external legal advisers and/or
other appropriate independent professional advisers with
respect to matters relating to our internal controls and
legal compliance.

In October 2020, we engaged an independent internal control
consultant (the “Internal Control Consultant”) to perform
a review over certain key areas of our internal control system.
The Internal Control Consultant provided recommendations
for our management’s consideration to enhance our internal
controls and procedures.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group's financial statements for each financial period to give
a true and fair view of the financial position, results and cash
flows of the Group for the period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
has selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Period, the Company appointed
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards to provide
audit services to the Company. The remuneration relating
to the annual audit services was RMB756,000. In addition,
the Company separately appointed HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited as the reporting accountant for the listing
of the Company in Hong Kong and paid a remuneration of
RMB1,172,000 to it in this regard.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders have the right to initiate and convene
general meetings

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association
of the Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to the
following rights: Extraordinary general meetings shall also
be convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the purpose
of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders are welcome to put forward proposals relating
to the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group
at a general meeting. Proposals shall be sent to the Board or
the Company Secretary by written requisition to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Suites 4404-10, 44/F, One Island East, 18 Westlands
Road, Taikoo Place, Hong Kong.

Shareholders are entitled to the enquiry right

Shareholders are entitled to make enquiries to the Board
by directly mailing to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Suites 4404-10, 44/F, One
Island East, 18 Westlands Road, Taikoo Place, Hong Kong.
The Company will deal with all enquiries in a timely and
appropriate manner.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that effective communication
with shareholders is essential to the enhancement of the
relationship with investors and enhancement of investors’
understanding of the Company’s business and strategies.
The Company highly values shareholders’ opinions and
suggestions, and actively organises and conducts various
activities related to the relationship with investors in order to
maintain the communication with shareholders, and to timely
satisfy the reasonable demands of all shareholders.

To enhance effective communication, the Company maintains
its website at http://www.slkj.cn where latest information on
the Company’'s business development, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

The AGM will be held on 25 May 2021. The notice of the AGM
will be sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

The Company believes that good relationship with investors
will help build a more stable shareholder base. As a result,
since the Listing, the Company has been and will be dedicated
to maintaining a higher degree of transparency, complying
with the Listing Rules and timely providing investors with
comprehensive and accurate information, and continuously
performing its obligation of information disclosure as a listed
company. The Company will strengthen its communication
with investors and let investors understand corporate strategies
and business operation by organising road shows, participating
in investors summit, voluntary information disclosure and
others.

The Company will continue to maintain a policy for open and
effective communication with investors for the purposes of
timely providing investors with the latest information on the
Company’s business while in compliance with the relevant
regulatory provisions.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Articles of Association was conditionally adopted on 10
February 2020 with effect from the Listing Date.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company actively fulfills its social responsibilities by
protecting the environment, making good use of and
cherishing resources, adopting more environmentally-friendly
designs and technologies and improving the environmental
awareness of its employees, partners and customers, so as
to minimize the impacts of the business of the Company
on the environment. For details, please refer to the 2020
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company,
which will be published on the website of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B &3t F A R
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

B % BARE

31/F, Gloucester Tower A

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street EITH1158

Central Hong Kong BEMWES
HEERTITKRE3E

To the shareholders of Sunlight Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sunlight Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 76 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Boards (the “IASB"”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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B ZBARE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

FRFZSEIR
FAREZERERERMANERHE &
BPIEAREREVBRRNELTRE
ENFEH - REFHARMYEE MR
RETREEGAUNERT AHKEE
BAFIE T B IMEE B R

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter
BREXREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMHNE AR ERRFTEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 2 BWCRE R E R G

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

FESHREMBRRME21

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had gross
trade receivables of approximately RMB52,983,000
and provision for impairment of approximately
RMB2,564,000.

R2020F12A31H BEEEREZEWFIALED
A R #52,983,0007T N 18 B 4 40 A R 82,564,000
I o

Management performed periodic assessment on
the recoverability of the trade receivables and the
sufficiency of provision for impairment based on
information including credit profile of different
customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent settlement
status, expected timing and amount of realisation
of outstanding balances, and on-going trading
relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate
the expected credit losses for the impairment
assessment.

EREEEREN (BRETAZFHNERABAL - ES
JEWCRIA R BR e  IBE AR H Rk RBEEBN - B11
A E RN TEHARER 28 AREEET PR
BEHHAR)  HE R FRIA AU E M R E 5
WA EETERNE - EEENEREARTER
FEERKEEREEE N RTRIEE R - ALt A
BENENEREEEE-

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on trade receivables included:
BMEMEEEHE ZRWFIERRERBTENREF
BiE:

o Understanding the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its
procedures on periodic review of trade
receivables and ECL assessment on trade
receivables;

e EMEEENTZEEEARFR BREETHE
BIREWE SHER LA EENE SRR BHEES
EBREF

e  Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2020
to the underlying financial records and post year-
end settlements to bank receipts;

o  HRIBBAM SR EMEIREN2020F12HA31HE
SN HIERBRERE R W FREEH BN
HRITWRAZET
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HEELSER

Independent Auditors’ Report

M % BN ] E

BEREREE (&)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNESNAEERRETSE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

8 7 B W SRR R E B

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

F2HRE M RRME21

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables under the expected
credit losses model involved the use of significant
management judgements and estimates.

BAFEINZAE RARHEBEEEFERRETHE
5 FEMGRIAE B R B RT (408 N F 8 12 I B A M e

it

o Inquiring of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as at
year end and corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such as
understanding on-going business relationship
with the customers based on trade records,
checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the
customers; and

e RNEERBERNEHERNFEREAHNEAEZEW
RENRR WA FHBBEEETRENREE
MRBEEFLHETRETFNFHEXEBRE &
BEFHNESR MNEBEELTHELREMMBE

o Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology, examining
the key data inputs on a sample basis to assess
their accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine
the expected credit losses.

o FHMAEHIGEERBEGANEENE MR
MR BEE AER AFHEERER TR

VTERETRMEEHERMEANRE (BRE
LN ATHEMEEFYL) ©

We found that the management judgment and
estimates used to assess the recoverability of the trade
receivables and determine the impairment provision to
be supportable by available evidence.

HAIEIR - FHEE B WA A AT e B 1 K B TE R A
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon (“Other
Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Shek Lui.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui
Practising Certificate Number: P0O5895

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEeBEaREMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020F 12H31H I F/Z

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR®T T ARBTT
Revenue A 8 134,441 182,681
Cost of sales 5 & B (102,842) (120,686)
Gross profit EF 31,599 61,995
Other revenue H A Ug A 9 4,234 2,833
Other gains H b U 2% 10 965 25
Impairment losses under expected ~ FEHIEEEEEN T 2B E
credit loss model, net of reversal B B EFERE (2,352) 144
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAS (7,128) (7,498)
Administrative and general expenses 17 K& —#& 5 X (19,374) (16,214)
Finance costs IR YD W 11 (486) (672)
Listing expenses EmRAX (10,246) (11,637)
(Loss)/profit before tax BREBA (BE) BR 12 (2,788) 28,976
Income tax expenses FTiSHiF = 13 (369) (4,852)
(Loss)/profit for the year AATEEAELEER
attributable to owners (E518) %R
of the Company (3,157) 24,124
Other comprehensive loss Hih2HEEE
Item that may be reclassified HERREEN S EEERRZ
subsequently to profit or loss: HE :
Exchange difference on translating  #EFINEHEZEN =58
foreign operation (761) (121)
Other comprehensive loss for the FREMEHEEIRE
year (761) (121)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income X2 FAEE AEBEFERNEE
for the year attributable to (BR) WREHE
owners of the Company (3,918) 24,003
(Loss)/earnings per share ERAREEAEEER
attributable to owners of the (E8) BR
Company
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EARAREE(ARESD) 17 (0.33) 3.22

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B OIR R R

At 31 December 2020 H2020F12H31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETTT ARETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - W= N & 18 59,715 62,049
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19 27,494 17,181
Prepayment BT A 22 5,752 -
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBEE = 29 385 69
93,346 79,299
Current assets RBEE
Inventories TE 20 17,994 17,651
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REWRIE K& EINE i 21 69,484 84,601
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFRIE - e K H A e W E0E
receivables 22 3,542 7,350
Pledged bank deposits EEFRITER 23 - 2,544
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBERS 23 79,641 14,226
170,661 126,372
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables Z S REMNFBREMNER 24 19,946 30,391
Other payables and accruals Hth T 5B R BT & A 25 5,693 4,465
Deferred income PEFE YA 26 137 137
Tax payables FEfH iR 196 2,446
Amounts due to shareholders JE 1~ I 3R R 08 27 = 1,378
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 28 = 21,727
25,972 60,544
Net current assets REBEEFE 144,689 65,328
Total assets less current liabilities #EERAEBEE 238,035 145,127
Non-current liability FREBEE
Deferred income PEFE YA 26 684 821
Net assets EEFE 237,351 144,306

RENBZRERERAE

CROREER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R OIR R R

At 31 December 2020 32020412 H31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B & ARBT T ARETT

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &N
Reserves f# %

Total equity mER

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 March 2021.

Chen Hua
BREE 4

Director

EF

The accompany notes from an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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30 3,497 670
233,854 143,636
237,351 144,306

R2021F3 308 EE E S it MR E T

%o

Zhu Jianqin
KEZELZL
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREaRgBX

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

Attributable to owners of the Company

BAAERARL
Share Share Capital Statutory Exchange Retained Total
Capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings equity

B Riia® B4R EEffE B RERF £
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEBTT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR

(Note (a))
(M @)
At 1 January 2019 20191317 36,000 - 61,274 8,034 - 21,860 127,168
Profit and total comprehensive income for - FR3AH & 2 B AR
the year - - - - - 24124 24124

Other comprehensive loss for the year ~— FREM2EBE - - - - (121) - (121)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £R2ENZLE = = = = (121) 24,124 24,003
Transfer to statutory reserve BERETRE - - - 3309 - (3,309 -
Issue of shares Bkt 335 - - - - - 335
Effect of reorganisation (Note (b)) BRNTE (WD) (35,665) 35,665 - - - - -
Dividend declared EERRE = = = = = (7,200) (7,200)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 12019%12 4318 %2020%1 318 670 35,665 61,274 11,343 (121) 35,475 144,306
Loss and total comprehensive loss ENEERZEERER

for the year - - - - - (3,157) (3,157)
Other comprehensive loss for the year — FREM2EFE - - - - (761) - (761)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREABRLE = = = = (761) (3,157) (3.918)
Transfer to statutory reserve BERETRE - - - 831 - (831) -
Capitalisation issue (Note 31(b)) AR AT (KE310) 1944 (1,944) - - - - =
Issue of shares pursuant to Global Offering RE2HKEEETRE (K3E310))

(Note 31(b)) 883 116,906 - - - - 117,789
Transaction costs attributable toissue o BIE2HEERTRBELRFRE

shares under Global Offering - 2.1 - - - - @)
Waiver of amounts due to shareholders £ ERREFE (K27

(Note 27) - - 1,385 - - - 1,385
At 31 December 2020 R2020512431A 3497 128,416 62,659 12,174 (882) 31,487 237,351

REMNZZRERAT —s-gffsg /0O
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EREE2H X

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F12H31H IF F/Z

Notes:

(a)

(b)

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC shall
appropriate 10% of its annual statutory net profit (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund
account in accordance with the PRC Company Law. When the
balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s share
capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to
increase capital after proper approval.

Effect of Reorganisation represents the effect of the completion
of the acquisition of Zhejiang Sunlight Material Technology
Co., Ltd (the “Zhejiang Sunlight”) by Hong Kong Gorgeous
Investment Limited (the “Hong Kong Gorgeous”) on 18 April
2019. The considerations for acquisition of the equity interests
in Zhejiang Sunlight were financed by the Shareholders’
Loans. The Shareholders’ Loans were capitalised by way of the
Company allotting and issuing shares, credited as fully paid, to
its shareholders as the part of Reorganisation as set out in Note
2 to consolidated financial statements.

2020 Annual Report
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MREFEERR)M10%E 8 =5 E #
BERP W% RSERESZERR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A

EE: ﬁ /)ILE 13):2

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F 12H31H IF F /&

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AR®T T AR®ETTT
Operating activities RETH
(Loss)/profit before tax BELET (B18) S F (2,788) 28,976
Adjustments for: HATIEEELHFAR:
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ % - B= L REITE
equipment 18 6,369 6,507
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESEITE 19 450 391
Gain on disposal of property, plant  HEWE  ME & &EE 2 W
and equipment 10 (7) (19)
Provision for/(reversal of provision THREZREEREE
for) impairment loss on: (BErmE) .
—trade and bills receivables — B Z W HIE K EW
E37 12 2,355 (137)
—other receivables — H & YR IE 12 (3) ()
(Reverse of)/write-down on FE (BE), /M
inventories 12 (125) 156
Bank interest income |ITH B A 9 (1,271) (50)
Finance costs B 75 B 2R 11 486 672
Operating cash inflows before LEESEHAINEERE
movements in working capital mA 5,466 36,489
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (&Em) R (217) (4,844)
Increase in trade and bills receivables & 5 g I 7} 18 % JiE U 22 15 12 A0 12,762 (16,933)
(Decrease)/increase in prepayments,  TEfT3RIE - B4 K H A fE K
deposits and other receivables FIE CRA) /1 64 (5,158)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills fé%ﬁﬁ RIE N JET R B
payables il (10,447) 6,659
Increase/(decrease) in other payables ﬁ{ﬂgﬂ’éﬁ IE&J?EJ%FH
and accruals 21 7 (CF 1,228 (2,663)
Decrease in deferred income i T YR (137) (137)
Cash generated from operating KETEEFSRE
activities 8,719 13,413
Income tax paid 2T TS (2,935) (6,228)
Net cash generated from operating K& EEFFTSIRE F5E
activities 5,784 7,185
RERFIZERERAT —ZT_ZFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEBREMNERXR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020F 12H31H I F/Z

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR®T T ARBTT
Investing activities REED
Purchases of items of property, plant BBE ¥ - HME LR EHEB
and equipment (3.654) (5,146)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWH¥  BERXEHEHE
plant and equipment 10 29
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank B2 EFRITEZR LD
deposits ($& ) 2,544 (984)
Purchases of land use right BE L RE 19 (10,763) -
Prepayment of property, plantand  #1% - BiE &R & 2B =X
equipment (5,752) =
Interest received 2 U F & 1,271 50
Net cash used in investing activities R & /EEFTAIR & /F5 (16,344) (6,051)
Financing activities &R B
Proceeds from bank and other RITRHAMIEEFTEHRIE
borrowings - 21,830
Repayment of bank and other EBRERTEREMEES
borrowings (21,678) (10,000)
Increase in amounts due to JFE~F A% B SR IE £ N
shareholders - 37,378
Share issue under global offering PIREBEE THRMD LT 117,789 =
Paid up capital T N - 670
Effect on reorganisation SHNTE - (36,000)
Dividend paid B E - (10,107)
Payment of issue costs XNETE (18,822) -
Interest paid ERFLE (486) (590)
Net cash generated from financing R & )EENFT/5IH & /558
activities 76,803 3,181
Net increase in cash and cash ReERBREEWILINFRE
equivalents 66,243 4,315
Cash and cash equivalents at the FIZBHEeRREEFEY
beginning of the year 14,226 10,162
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEFH o T8
changes (828) (251)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end F R Z2HE & KIS ZED
of the year 79,641 14,226

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

2020 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F 12H31H IF F /&

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sunlight Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited
liability on 29 January 2019 under the name of Darkblue
Technology Co. Ltd.. On 29 January 2019, the name of
the Company changed to Sunlight Technology Co., Ltd.
then changed to Sunlight Technology Holdings Limited
on 9 May 2019. The registered office address is at 89
Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY-9009,
Cayman Islands. The head office and principal place of
the Group is at No.2 Jiangshan Road, Meicheng Town,
Jiande County, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, PRC,
respectively.

The Company’s ultimate holding company is Sunlight
Global Investment Limited (“Sunlight Global”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI”). Sunlight Global is ultimately controlled by Mr.
Chen Hua.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sales of faux leather chemicals.
Particulars of Group's subsidiaries are set out in Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) by way
of international placing and Hong Kong public offer
(collectively the “Global Offering”) on 12 March 2020
(the “Listing Date”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the presentation currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousands (“RMB’000”) except otherwise indicated.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, which is different from the Company’s functional
currency of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). The directors of
the Company adopted RMB as presentation currency the
Group’s operating activities are carried out in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC").

1.

—REH

REREERBR AR ARATE R
201951 A29R 1RIB A RUAE R 2 BF
B ADarkblue Technology Co. Ltd.%
BaMK I AREREERAG R
2019FF1 H29R AR A BWEE R
Sunlight Technology Co., Ltd. * #Af&
M2019F5H9H # T ASunlight
Technology Holdings Limited’# & &}
BERAERAF iRt B
89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand
Cayman KY1-9009, Cayman
Islands ° ANEE B AR F B FEMh By
iz 5 FR BT VI 48 A N T 2 A T A I R
BILBK25% -

NR A H) & 2 1% I’ A 7] ASunlight
Global Investment Limited([ Sunlight
Global |- REEBEXHE([RBEX
BB )Mz B 2 Al )e Sunlight
Global B R £ 5t A S A3 4%l

ARBAR—RREZERAR] - B
AE([AEE D EBEREREREE
ATEER NEEHE QR
IRESINER & M SRR M FE37

KRR, ([ BR4 1) 1KR2020F3 712
HIEHmA#S)EBRBREEREB
NHEE(FE[2RBE ) EREH
ERZGABMR AR (BT ERE
M °

HEMBBRRAARB(TAREDZE
I NRBERBARBNZINEE - IR
ABEERABIN ESHCHEER
BOINTH(TARETR ) -Had
BHRRUAARBZS BARRF 2T
EBET(EBT) AR ARAFE
ERAARBERZIEE KA&H
MGEEHRPEARLMB( F
B )ET

RENMBREREBRAE —ZT-ZFHFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
2.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

REORGANISATION

In connection with the listing of the Shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, the Company underwent a
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”).

Pursuant to the Reorganisation as fully explained
in “History, Development and Reorganisation -
Reorganisation” of the Prospectus of the Company dated
27 February 2020 (the “Prospectus”), the company
became the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group on 18 April 2019. The Companies
now comprising the Group were under the common
control of Mr. Chen Hua and Ms. Liu Jing, two of
controlling shareholders of the Company before and
after the Reorganisation. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on the basis by
applying the principles of merger accounting as if the
Reorganisation has been completed at the beginning of
the reporting period.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash
flows include the results and cash flows of the companies
now comprising the Group have been prepared as if
the current group structure upon completion of the
Reorganisation had been in existence throughout
the reporting period or since their respective date of
incorporation, where there is a shorter period. The
consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group have been prepared to present the assets and
liabilities of the companies now comprising the Group
as if the current group structure upon completion of the
Reorganisation had been in existence as at those dates,
taking into account the respective dates of incorporation.

All intra-group transactions and balances have been
eliminated on combination.

2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRSs and
the following new and amendments to IFRSs issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
for the first time for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

3.

F& P 37 5] I A4S 5T B B B 75 4
=R ([ B 5 2%
a1 1)

7N 5 BE 5 o A U AV B PR B A R o 2
AHERT A

RAFE AEED ERERBERM
s 22 R BB SR SRR O (B AT
AETmBERgTENEEE([H
ETEREER |)RMOIR RE
ERTBIRE B & R ARFIZR S
TSR

BREsHRAIE 1R EANTER
BIfR & EAIF8H
SHES)

ARMBREENER ~ FHNER
S-HES

BARMBEREERFSR . FREERE

BIFR & RHERAIF 395 )
BRI B RS RSB TR
SHES)

TRZR4F [ 18 R B R B 75 e o5 ZE Al b
BSEREAMNERT RBRYBRE
B ZEFTAH AR BRAFEE M
EFEZHEAMBRREIMAR, &
SZEGEVBRRABRELEEX

B/ 488
o

RENMBREREBRAE —ZT-ZFHFH

85



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R WK

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F12H31H IF F/Z

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("IFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments'

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions*

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 Reform - Phase 2°
and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current!
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use?
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2018-2020?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020.

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to IFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting policies which
conform with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decision made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of each
reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements are determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS
36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

J Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and companies
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are

changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

4.

EXRETBERBEE)

RERBEE(E)
AEBERSHE A RIZE IR
HiZa AR KREMNB A RE S
AINBERE AR - RNFAKE
FHEZMBRARZWA R BAR
SEESEHEE BRRFTAKEE
s HMEEARSER BEARAEET
BHREMBAREHEE A LL-

fied 4 22 - 5 9 B I % R BA FS ¥R R A
HE UEESFRRERNEENS
TR RFT— B

AEBAMBARBR S &5 WA
SEFuuhiS TN

BaEkEMEEKEEER DEBER
ARBHEAARIFERER - B
Alz2HRANEEEERARREAR
ANORERE s BME L RSB T
R s D IR SR o

fief 0 22 - 75 1 BT BB 2 B BA TS ¥R AR AE
AE AFEEERRERNKENS
TR RFT— B

MESEBEARRIRZEENRBE #
@ WA X REAREEKE QA
BeRZEBEIBAEREANGZ SR
EESFY SEar

KRB AR 2 IR EREAEE
BEOFES IRBRERE T HER
BARLBISEERN B R R EEF
BZREREEER -

RENMBREREBRAE —ZT-ZFHFH

39



90

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which
qualifies as business combination, except for those
acquisitions which qualify as a common control
combination and are therefore accounted for using the
merger accounting.

Under the purchase method of accounting, subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date that control ceases. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of exchange and, all acquisition-related costs are
expensed. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at
the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Merger accounting for common control
combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement items of the combining entities or
business in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or business first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or business
are combined using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
with respect to goodwill or any excess of acquirer's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over its cost at
the time of common control combination, to the extent
of the contribution of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of
the combining entities or business from the earliest date
presented or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under common control, where this
is a shorter period, regardless of the date of common
control combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Merger accounting for common control
combination (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between the combining entities or
business are eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated
but considered as an impairment indicator of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of combining entities or
business have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, cost of furnishing information to shareholders,
costs or losses incurred in combining operations of the
previously separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation
to the common control combination that is to be
accounted for by using merger accounting are recognised
as an expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any:

- buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating
leases; and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Building held for own use
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating until to which
the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the

financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as
other revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

3 the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

3 the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which IFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other revenue and other income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (“ECL"”) model on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including
trade and bills receivables, deposit and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances). The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting period to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessments,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 22020 12H31H IFF/E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, amounts due to
shareholders and bank and other borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial liabilities’ original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial
liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
on hand, demand deposits with banks, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
processing, labour and indirect overheads, and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price of

inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the government
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the government grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition
is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
nonoccurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or services (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or
services.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer. A contract
asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

Sales of faux leather chemicals

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts, rebates and returns.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease component(s) and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
component(s) as a single lease component for all leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

4.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report

4.

ERETBERBE#E

HE (&)

HEERE

REERE B ARERRNZ A RN
ZHENRZREERARGEHESR
Bt BEHEENRNBRER Wil
S S MM RERRKERE QIR
SENHERK B HRAEEEET

2o

HEMNRBHE

o  BEENF(BREEEREENMNK)R
LR 8 Y A0 B 2R

o USERMLE BT ENS R
EHA S RERBECRTEER
FIEME):

s FREEFRTERHAKEENNS
G

s (HAREAEEETHERERE
& EERENTEE &

o RIFMASZHN WHEFHKR
MRAKETERLEHEZEE
e

RFtE B HE - HE R ER A SIE
MBS REE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

Lease modifications

The Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and
deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income or in equity if it relates to items that are
recognised in the same or a different period directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with joint operations, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at of the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of each reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Annual contributions to retirement benefit schemes
operated by the government in the PRC are recognised in
the profit or loss as and when incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve.

Borrowing cost

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Research and development expense

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials and salaries where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Other development expenditure does not meet
these criteria is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S B % 3R R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties transactions

4.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(c)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is @ member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the reporting
entity.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties transactions (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies (continued):

(vii) a person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
inflecting by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

Dividends

Dividends proposed by the directors of the Company
are classified as a separate allocation of retained
earnings within the equity section of the statements of
financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
4,

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4 to consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimations uncertainty

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests whether non-financial assets have
suffered from any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 4 to consolidated
financial statements. The recoverable amount of an asset
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. Management estimates value in use based
on estimated discounted pre-tax future cash flows of
the cash generating unit at the lowest level to which
the asset belongs. If there is any significant change in
management’s assumptions, including discount rates
or growth rates in the future cash flows projection, the
estimated recoverable amounts of the non-financial
assets and the Group’s results would be significantly
affected. Such impairment losses are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Accordingly, there will be an
impact to the future results if there is a significant change
in the recoverable amounts of the non-financial assets.
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
5.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Provision of ECL for financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Management estimates the amount of loss allowance for
ECL on financial assets that are measured at amortised
cost based on the credit risk of the respective financial
instrument. The loss allowance amount is measured as
the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows after
taking into consideration of expected future credit loss
of the respective financial instrument. The assessment
of the credit risk of the respective financial instrument
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty. When
the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
a material impairment loss or a material reversal of
impairment loss may arise, accordingly.

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of the
estimated selling price less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. The management estimates the net
realisable value for inventories based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions. In
addition, the management performs an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting
period and assess the need for write-down of inventories.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC.
Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

B E b EE B R REUR

Categories of financial instruments SEITAER

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T

Financial assets at amortised cost REBERATENESREE
— Trade and bills receivables — & F W EIE & e E % 69,484 84,601
— Deposits and other receivables — e R E M. RIA 4 53
— Pledged bank deposits —BEEARTER - 2,544
— Bank balances and cash —RITEHRNIRE 79,641 14,226
149,129 101,424

Financial liabilities at amortised cost R#HER AT ENERMEE
— Trade and bills payables —BHRNFIARENRE 19,946 30,391
— Other payables and accruals —Hfb A RIE R EETE R 5,693 2,431
— Amounts due to shareholders — B IR 3R FRIE - 1,378
— Bank and other borrowings —SRITREMEE - 21,727
25,639 55,927

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and bills payables, other payables and accruals, amounts
due to shareholders and bank and other borrowings. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance
the Group’s operation.

The main risks arising from the Group’'s financial
instruments are market risk (including interest rate risk
and foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s management reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below:

AEENTIZeMITABREEHEK
RIEREWEE  Re REAMRKR
B BEMRTER RITEHRER
T BEHRNRARENRE Hit
MR RERER - BABERRIA
MEFTREMEE ZFERTAE
BEERASBEERE -

AEESRTAMEANEEZRRR
™5 E (85 = R & & INE R
2) EERRERBDESER K&
BEEEERIMABREESEZFA
BEEER - BREBRGRIT

RENMBREREBRAE —ZT-ZFHFH

123



124

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Market risk

6.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Bank
and other borrowings bearing fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk but the
exposure to the Group is considered immaterial.

The exposure to cash flow interest rate risk for the
Group's bank balances and pledge bank deposits
are considered immaterial as at 31 December 2019.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented for
interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group
is expose to the foreign currency risk arising
from financial instruments which are primarily
denominated in United Stated Dollars (“USD") from
its ordinary operating activities, these are not the
functional currency of the group entities to which
these transactions relate.

As at each reporting date, foreign currency
denominated financial assets, translated into RMB
closing rates, are as follows:

6.

AR EE B ERBEKE)
(a) WIHER

AEE L F BASFIERINE
PEE = S B ) B A TRl

AE@B
FERRESRTEN AT EK
REREEATHFRES)M IR
R ENEY B o DAEE M X G B
RITREMEESAEESRIE
BRATEMNERRE BREER
PR BRI AR R RE K o

%2019@12)?3152&%.%&??
R EEBIRITERTEZH
BeRefXRARETTNEKN-H

It - 30 4 2 51 X & fr SR E o

#T o

S B

SNERRIE R T AMNEBERE
XEPMEBNER NEEB
HE' Z«<%/EEEE\JHIKLA%E
(IExXDFHEN SR T AEED
SN [ B - T 5% S5 SNEE I 3 B %
ERXRFEANEEERNIGEE
WK o

REREBH RINEEHE IR
ARBWMERN BN SR EE
T -

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBF T
Trade receivables: Z 5K
- UsSD —%7T 267 1,085
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
as at the end of each of the reporting period to
a reasonably possible change in foreign currency
exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s post-tax (loss)/profit (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets) and
the Group's entities.

6. MEEREEBFERBERE)

(a)

AR ()
SmB ()

TRIITRE S R AR
o7 E A TR R T
AR BB (BB), WA BA
REE LI EL HRART
B B SR (AN R A B
MATERD).

Increase/
(decrease) in
rate of Impact on
foreign post-tax
currency (loss)/profit
HERBLE
HEER (FB) EF
EH* (TR 2
% RMB’000
% ARBFTT
At 31 December 2020 72020 12H31H
If RMB weakens against USD MARBHETRE 5 13
If RMB strengthens against USD i AR B FE T HE (5) (13)
At 31 December 2019 K2019F12H31H
If RMB weakens against USD M ARKRETEE 5 54
If RMB strengthens against USD HARE N ETHE (5) (54)
Credit risk (b) EERB
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to REBGHEE F eI K E UK

its trade and bill receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances. The carrying amounts represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets.

RENBZRERERAE

R R REMERFER
HIRRITFRBIRITERARE
EEE - REEREAEER S H
BEMAZ 2EREERR K
B EA A A e E
EERAERAENESREE
R EE R -

—E-TEEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

6.

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with bank deposits since they
are substantially deposited at state-owned banks
and other medium or large-sized listed banks.
The credit risks on bill receivables are limited
because the counterparties are reputable banks.
Management does not expect that there will be any
significant losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management
makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits
based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management
believes that there are no significant increase in
credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group assessed the ECL for other receivables and
deposits and thus reversal of allowance of ECL of
approximately RMB3,000 (2019: RMB7,000) was
recognised.

Trader receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECL prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime ECL for all trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the loss
allowance for the trade receivables was determined
as follows. The ECL below also incorporated
forward looking information.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E B R OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MKEREEEBERBERE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERK(E)
Trader receivables (continued) EZ WA (E)
Past due but not impaired
BEREREE
within 91 to over
Current  90days 180 days 180 days Total
D 90H®R 91Z180H EiB180H st
At 31 December 2020 R2020412A318
Expected loss rate (%) TEHEE & (%) 0.07 0.09 0.96 48.29 4.84
Gross carrying amount BEEE(ARETT)
(RMB'000) 26,290 18,590 2,926 5,177 52,983
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EEEE(ARETT) 19 17 28 2,500 2,564
Past due but not impaired
BEaHBERHE
within 91 to over
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
EIEE 90HR 9121808 HiB180H Bt
At 31 December 2019 R2019612A318
Expected loss rate (%) EHEEE(%) 0.01 0.06 0.61 31.82 0.35
Gross carrying amount BEEE(ARETT)
(RMB'000) 37,268 21,052 818 594 59,732
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EBBREE(ARETT) 3 12 5 189 209
() Liquidity risk () RBpESRK

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or an another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
trade payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flows management. The
Group’s objective is to maintain an appropriate level
of liquid assets and committed lines of funding
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

Management monitors the cash flows forecasts of
the Group in meeting its liabilities.

RE

MBE & E RSB REEEK
HURNMBREH R —REEN
TRENERAEMSREERN
Rk AEEREEE S EMNR
RAREREEEARERERE
ERTHEARZRBE SRR A
SENBERRGRBEE AR
B REARBNEENRF  LE
NEEHERMNRDESS
K o

ERENBETHEIRERASE

BrRRETRR -

MBERERAE —Z-ZFFHR

127



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S B R R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020F 12H31H I F/Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

6.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with
agreed repayment periods. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group may be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The
contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on
which the Group may be required to pay.

6.

MEEREERBERBEE)

(c)

REBEEEE(E)
THRBHAANEEREHEE
RN SR B ENORGBSOE
MR - BRARBIIEREREA
BERARMBARSRERAEEF]
BE BN RANRFE B HRE -
BERRBEHEANERASRER
E-HAMERERZHNE K
RS BIDENSREHRNH
RgRrEE - A NERBRTE
KA BRI BE W BRI & T
B HEE -

Weight
average Ondemand Over 1year Over 2 years Total Total
effective  orwithin and within ~ and within undiscounted  carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years Syears cashflows  amount
nEFY  REXY BE1ER  EEERE ABRRS
ERAZ  MER WMER RSER REEE  AREE
% RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
% ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2020 #2020512A318
Non-derivative financial liabilities HiteRER
Trade and bills payables BAENTERENZE - 19,946 - - 19,946 19,946
Other payables and accruals A ERTERESER - 5,693 - - 5,693 5,693
25,639 - - 25,639 25,639
At 31 December 2019 H2019E12A318
Non-derivative financial liabilties HiEEBER
Trade and bills payables ESENTERERNES - 30,391 - - 30,391 30,391
Other payables and accruals EHERTERESER - 2431 = - 2431 2431
Amount due to shareholders EfRRZE = 1378 - = 1378 1378
Bank and other borrowings BREMES 340 21,895 - - 18% 21,727
56,095 - - 56095 56095
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

(i)

(iii)

the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
bid and ask prices respectively;

the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models (e.g.
discounted cash flow analysis using observable
and/or unobservable inputs); and

the fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is performed using the applicable yield
curve for the duration of the instruments for
non-optional derivatives, and option pricing
models for optional derivatives.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

6. MEEREEBFERBERE)

(d £mIENAFE
SRBERSRAENDTER
THIEERT :

(i)

(iii)

B AR RR R AR AL LR
BMEEENESREEN
TREBENRAFETSD
S2EMBMHEAENRE
HEBE :

HiteMEERERAR
(TBETEIR)NRTF
B DRAREEENX(H
ERAAEER/HTAE
R ABBETRARS

MEDNEE : &

TET AR FERRE
FAE-RAREEESHREE
% BIDASRHAREDT A T A/
TAHRNERZEERH
AR AR BRRENTAE T AR H]
BEEEANETHRRAS
MEDHT

TREHRNTIR D FEEREKT
ENEeRIT AN BRBRAFE
BEMGREEIRE 2=

RENBZRERERAE

E-RRAFEFEHBEE
REEXBERNERMS
P (REAEE)ERSH

E_RRFEFEIRE
E—RAABREREAIN 7]
BEERAMER) MRS
ERITE)EEERAEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR wR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F12H31H IF F/Z
6.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

(e)

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The management considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
at amortised cost recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
debt (which includes amounts due to shareholders
and bank and other borrowings), bank balances
and cash, pledged bank deposits and total equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and retained earnings.

Gearing ratio

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The ratio is calculated based on net debt
and total equity.
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E B R OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Capital risk management (continued)

Gearing ratio (continued)

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

6.

MBEREEEERBE )
() BXAMER(E)

BEEEFELE(E)
BEPRNEERBLRWT

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Amounts due to shareholders JFE 15 B 3R 7k 08 - 1,378
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE - 21,727
_ 23,105
Less: Bank balances and cash B SRTTEBR MRS (79,641) (14,226)
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER - (2,544)
Net debt BI%FE (79,641) 6,335
Total equity B 237,351 144,306
Gearing ratio BEAGELE N/A T B 4.39%
& Total debt comprises amounts due to shareholders & BEBBREGEE M BRKRN T
and bank and other borrowings as detailed in Notes 27 %285 Bl 5 it K FE 1 AR R
27 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements, RIBERBITREMEER-
respectively.
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. oEER

0]

Operating segment information

The Group’s most senior executive management
has been identified as the chief operating decision
maker who reviews the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources.
The Group’s most senior executive management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The Group’s most senior executive management
assesses the performance based on a measure of
(loss)/profit after tax and considers all businesses to
be included in a single operating segment.

(i) KEIHER
AEBRRSTHREEESEIEL
BRRE  HRs AR BN
BE U ERERDEER-
AEEZSITHREEEEREZX

AEESSTRERBRIEMRAT
Bhik(BR), RN BT A%
WA RBMAE —KZ

7> HB °
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e MR wR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F12H31H IF F/Z
7.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

()

(i)

Operating segment information (continued)
The Group is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of faux leather chemicals.
Information reported to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment, focuses on
the operating result of the Group as a whole as the
Group's resources are integrated and no discrete
operating segment financial information is available.
Accordingly, no operating segment information is
presented.

Geographical information

The Group's operation is principally in the PRC and
all its non-current assets are situated in the PRC.

The Group’s revenue are derived from the PRC and
overseas (i.e. Mexico, Brazil, Turkey and Vietnam)
based on the location of goods delivered as follows:

7.

2EER ()

()

(i)

resWER(E)

AEETENRFRERHEAT
Et2m R AEEERET
HYEDHEEDBIHHE
B RAAEREERTRERE
Z2FAED B E R K FHERIRH
ERBEIASEBREERE-
Rtk W2 5K E D EBEHY

I E R
AEBETERTEZE BEM
BIRRBEEHMNFE -

AEBEBETBEKRBIINEIERA
FEBEA-THFHEERBR)EER
W A H2 P 22 15 5 W) 4 B #1051 40
B

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥T T
The PRC h 132,107 179,006
Overseas NEEN 2,334 3,675
134,441 182,681
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7.

(iii) Information about a major customer

Revenue from a customer during the years
contributing individually over 10% of the Group’s
revenue is as follows:

DEBER (&)

(i) BEEEESHER
o 4 P BB A SR A R
H10%H— BB SRR :

Year ended 31 December

BZ=12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Company A (Note) AalA (HEE)

Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

8. REVENUE 8.

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
from the sales of faux leather chemicals, net of discounts,
sales return and sales related taxes during the years.

- 25,056

Mzr: HMHEWALRARNERZ
BN EBIEI10% ©

A

WATEFARHEA T2 M
K EMGRIA (AEFNERITH - SHE R
SHEMERTIR)-

2
=P

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31MBLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFR ARETT

Revenue from contracts with customers: KEZFE & 42 WA :

Recognised at a point in time TR — I [B] B i AR
Sales of faux leather chemicals HEATLELLER

The Group has applied the practical expedient under
IFRS 15 so that transaction price allocated to unsatisfied
performance obligations under contracts for sales of faux
leather chemicals are not disclosed as such contracts have
an original expected duration of one year or less.

134,441 182,681

AEE D RIRBEFRS B REERIF15
SERAERER A AL REED
REATE(CERHEESHNARETE
HWEENRZER REEZEFAH
MRFEHR A —FIA T -

RENMBREREBRAE —ZT-ZFHFH
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e B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
9. OTHER REVENUE 9. HlxA

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEFE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFTT

Bank interest income RITAE A 1,271 50
Government grant (Note) B B (B =E) 2,317 2,017
Sundry income HMIBWA 646 766
4,234 2,833
Note: Government grants represent various form of subsidies Mizk: BT HEIBhIE S B 5 BT AL RS 1Al
granted to the Group by the local governmental AEFRENSERABMEL -
authorities in the PRC for compensation of expenses BAREEAEEEANEBER %
incurred by the Group. These grants are generally made ZHB—MARERYE I
for business support and awarded to enterprises on a BEFLE AERRENHH
discretionary basis. The Group received these government MG EES T B o 1 4m
grants in respect of its investments in the PRC. There are HZE M B A REBITIRES
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these HAEIE o
grants.
10. OTHER GAINS 10. Hftzfz=
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE  WME RRE7 W

and equipment 7 19
Exchange gain PE % W 2 958 6
965 25
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E B R OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

11. FINANCE COSTS

11. B#EH A

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREF T
Interest on bank and other borrowings R A F ANEHEENEITR
wholly repayable within five years HMEEZHE 486 672

12. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(Loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

12. BR%LAT(BIR), A
M B AT (S HR), i M o Ag e (it

ANVATEIRER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR®ET T
Auditors’ remuneration (Note) ZEE R (M) 756 445
Listing expenses EARAX 10,246 11,637
Cost of inventories sold FrERFERA 102,967 120,530
Depreciation: e
— Depreciation of property, plant —ME- HWEREERTE
and equipment 6,369 6,507
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ —{f REEETE 450 391
6,819 6,898
Less: amount included in cost of sales J : 51 A 8 & AKX AN B9 Z0 I8 (4,268) (5,120)
2,551 1,778
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e B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
12. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 12. BRFBLAT(ESE), B8R (&)

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLLEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment  5t48 7 (#[E) ~5|HE B Z B E
loss on: Ei1E :
— trade receivables (Note 21) —B SRR FIE (MaE21) 2,355 (137)
— other receivables — H 8 YR IE (3) (7)
Directors’ remuneration (Note 14) EEHM (FFE14) 1,048 950
Staff costs (excluding directors’ EINA (TREESHM)
remuneration)
— wages, salaries, allowances and bonus — T & - %4 280 MIEAL 11,820 10,911
— contributions to retirement —RIREFIFT B3
benefits schemes 1,404 2,344
13,224 13,255
Less: amounts included in cost of sales & : F A 845 5K AN #2118 (5,026) (4,797)
8,198 8,458
(Reversal of)/write-down on inventories 7% (#[E) /#5 (125) 156
Research and development expenses A 255 52 7,453 8,112
Expenses for short term lease REHERX 330 193
Note: Exclude services for the listing of the Company. Mizk: TEEABEAARETHRE-
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

13. FREBIAX

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLFE
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®ET T

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") P ERTEN
([¥mBH)

— Current income tax —BIERFR1SH 685 4,831
Deferred tax (Note 29) EERIE (Fi5E29) (316) 21
Total tax charge for the year FARIBY HBHE 369 4,852

The PRC

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of its
operations in the PRC was calculated at tax rate of 25%
on the assessable profits for the reporting period, based
on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices in

respect thereof.

Zhejiang Sunlight is approved as “high and new
technology enterprise” and accordingly, it is subject to a
reduced preferential corporate income tax rate of 15%

for the reporting period.

Cayman Islands, BVI and Hong Kong

No Provision for taxation has been recognised for
companies incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, BVI and
Hong Kong as they are not subject to any tax during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Withholding Tax in Mainland China (“WHT")

According to the New Corporate Income Tax Law (“New
EIT Law"), distribution of profits earned by companies in
Mainland China since 1 January 2008 to foreign investors
is subject to withholding tax of 5% or 10%, depending
on the country of incorporation of the foreign investors,
upon the distribution of profits to overseas incorporated

immediate holding companies.

]

BIBBITEN RERBBEN X
EEMERHREBTEHEET
FERA 3R B 0 Y B BR RO R IR B R
25%=t& -

NI REET A SFRMEE] ®
e RBREHAN A IRERCEM
BRI R Z15% B ©

HEHRE HEEXKHERER
RESHE RBERELEENEBT
ARSI A A Al W R T B AR R
HAEZE R A RE E2020%F KX2019
F12A31HILFEANEBGR -

rh B P tth FE OB ([ FEHBL )
BIEFEEMGR A HEERER
D) ERREMEMKAEEE
P NCIR 9 Lol =il Ap: /NEI R =!
200841 A1 HRMINEKRE E DR
BE A Y 558 F) 8 125 %8010 % HY T R 4%
MIBINE - BT Z NG E B MK
S FTEBIR M E ©
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
13.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Withholding Tax in Mainland China (“WHT")
(continued)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the retained earnings
of the Group's PRC subsidiary not yet remitted to holding
company incorporated outside of the PRC, for which no
deferred income tax liability had been provided, were
approximately RMB51,922,000 and RMB44,441,000
respectively. For this unrecognised amount, the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The income tax expense during the reporting period
can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit before tax per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

13. AR &)

Hh B P e TR A BE (T FR B 1) (42)

2020 K&2019F12A31H ' & £
EPWJ%@?H?EE%EPI%%@I\%‘E
AR S B9 #E AR R B 4R B & I (3 £
FUFIRELEMEHREE) D RIHA
Eﬁ@m 922F Tt &k A R #44,441F

Eﬁu%ﬂiﬁﬁn %ﬁgﬁﬁm KE.HE
%@# FIEREERRERNRRE BY
RUEEEFEENERNRRTE
B[O o

BEMANFASRAX A EES B
&ET@;EH& &3} P B T AT (B
18),/RMEROT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLLFE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTTT

(Loss)/profit before tax BELAT (E18) %A (2,788) 28,976
Tax at applicable tax rate applicable to % i@ F3 73 #8 B8 m) A #E & )% F A9

profits in the jurisdiction concerned BERAMEFENTIE 576 7,889
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  “~NA] 171 FA 2 A9 5 75 7 2

for tax purposes 1,206 1,647
Tax effect of income not taxable for  HERH U A BNTIET L

tax purposes (1) (37)
Effect attributable to the additional 55 B AT 3% A AN AR B A BB A0

qualified tax deduction relating to EERBERENTE

research and development costs (1,367) (1,467)
Tax effects of deductible temporary REER A 0 = 58 HY B 1%

differences not recognised o - 21
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses  RIERTHEEIEN I E 411 23
Tax concession IR R % (456) (3,224)

369 4,852
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 14. EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of WEHARNEEETETREE N EN
the Company (including emoluments for services as ARAREEFNH(BEXAERRF
employees/directors of the Group prior to becoming the BEIEAANEEEE EEHRSG
directors of the Company) by entities comprising the &) :

Group during the reporting period are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2020

BZE2020F512831BILEE
Salaries,
allowance Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonus contribution Total
g 2R

EENe RENEN  BERAL BASEHR At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Executive directors: BTEE:

Mr. Chen Hua (Note (i)) BREE & A (FIEEG)) - 256 - 25 281
Ms. Liu Jing (Note (ii)) Bl&5 2 (P aE(i)) - ~ = - -
Ms. Zhu Jiangin (Note (iii))  REZ &+ (M) - 285 - - 285
Mr. Li Xiangyu (Note (iv)) BrFrEE (FEw) - 270 = 26 296

Independent non-executive B FHTES

directors
Mr. Tian Jingyan (Note (v)) ~ HAS&E%TE (V) 60 - ~ - 60
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen AER A (W)

(Note (vi)) 66 - - - 66
Ms. Yu Zhen (Note (vii)) I & 2t (M (vii)) 60 - > - 60

186 811 = 51 1,048
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 22020 12H31H IFF/E
14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

14. EEM (&)
Year ended 31 December 2019
HZE20195 128318 LEE

Salaries,
allowance Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonus  contribution Total
£ =
EXWe KREWEN  BEEL RAKFERR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTE AR®TR AR®TT ARETR
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Chen Hua (Note (i) BREESC A4 (FEEG)) - 280 = 54 334
Ms. Liu Jing (Note (ii) BIF L (M) - - - - -
Ms. Zhu Jiangin (Note (iii)) — REZ =+ (M i) - 282 - - 282
Mr. Li Xiangyu (Note (iv)) BrRFEE (HE) — 281 — 53 334
Independent non-executive BV FHTES:
directors:
Mr. Tian Jingyan (Note (v)) B S&%4E (MFV) - - - - -
Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen R S (i)
(Note (vi) - - — — =
Ms. Yu Zhen (Note (vii)) W &8 2 £ (B (vil)) — = = - -
- 843 - 107 950

The executive directors’ emoluments shown were mainly
for their service in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

During the reporting period, there were no amounts
paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any
of the highest paid individuals set out in Note 15 as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the reporting period.

Notes:

(i) Mr. Chen Hua was appointed as executive director and on
21 June 2019.

(i) Ms. Liu Jing was appointed as executive director and
chairman on 21 June 2019.

(i) Ms. Zhu Jiangin was appointed as executive director on 21
June 2019.

2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E B R OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 14. EEME(2)
Notes: (continued) MeE: (&)
(iv)  Mr. Li Xiangyu was appointed as executive director on 21 (iv) BEmFLAER2019F6821HEZR
June 2019. FABITES-
(v)  Mr. Tian Jingyan was appointed as independent non- (v) HEEEER2020F28108 EZ
executive director on 10 February 2020. EABIYIERITES -
(vij  Mr. Ho Ho Tung Armen was appointed as independent (vi) A& %4 R20205F2 108 E &
non-executive director on 10 February 2020. EABIIERNITES -
(vii) Ms. Yu Zhen was appointed as independent non-executive (viiy M B 22 £ 72020F2 8108 £ R (T
director on 10 February 2020. BN IEHITES -
15. EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID 15. AEBEHFMA LM
INDIVIDUALS
The five highest paid individuals included 3 (2019: 3) B E2020F12A3IB L FEEMRESL
executive directors of the Company for the years ended M A LD RIBRE3H (20194 ¢
31 December 2020, details of whose emoluments are set 3B)ARRNAIMITEE EMEF15E
out in Note 14. The emoluments of the remaining highest I A BT 5514 - & 22020F12 8318
paid individuals for the years ended 31 December 2020 FEE B8 TESEFMALTSR2E
are 2 (2019: 2) respectively and individuals disclosed are (20195 : 2B )W B RN T -
as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ=12A318LLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTRT ARBTET

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind # & 285 R E W& A 561 559

Contributions to retirement BRIREF T EIE
benefits schemes 54 107
615 666
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e MR wR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F12H31H IF F/Z

15. EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST PAID 15. EEESHFMA LS (2)
INDIVIDUALS (continued)
The number of remaining highest paid employees whose B A T EE R 5 T & = B B E
emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows: B AT :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Nil to RMB 1,000,000 =z AR #%1,000,0007T 2 2
The number of the senior management (excluding FMENU THEENSHEEE (R
directors) whose emoluments fell within the following BIEEE)AZWOT :

bands is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31B LLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Nil to RMB 1,000,000 =z AR #¥1,000,0007T 2 2
16. DIVIDENDS 16. lRE
Prior to the Reorganisation, a PRC subsidiary of the E TR NG o R =N B
Company, Zhejiang Sunlight Material Technology Co., RE M BRI AR AR (¥R
Ltd. (“Zhejiang Sunlight”), declared RMB7,200,000, E )R EE2019F12A831H IEF E
dividends to its then shareholders during the year ended MEEENRETREE AR
31 December 2019. 7,200F L °
The Board does not recommend the payment of any EEe NEZRMNEE2020F12A
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020. 318 IFEEMERIRE o
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

17. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share
during the period is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB3,157,000 (2019: profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB24,124,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the period of 951,369,863
(2019: 750,000,000, which has been adjusted
retrospectively for the effect of the capitalisation issue
as detailed in Note 31(f) as if the capitalisation issue
had been effective since 1 January 2019). Diluted (loss)/
earnings per share were same as the basic (loss)/earnings
per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

17. BR(EE)ER
AHENESRER(EER)BF - T
BIEHERARR RS ABEFEAE
BHARYE3 157FL(2019%F « AR
RIEBEABREFERGFHARKE
24,124F 0) RE BT LB INETF
9 #71951,369,8630% (20194 :
750,000,000% * Bt E AL EITH =
LEITEPFE WO EMEEIT(M
BIFE31(FFTaF 4 ) B 7 2019F1 818
ER)ETE - SRIEE(E8) B E
BRER(ER) BFHER - HER
#H 20204 K2019F12A31H 1L F
EWEEEDBRITEELER-

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31B LFE
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
(Loss)/profit for the attributable to KABEAANEN (FE),/
owners of the Company (RMB'000) wH (ARBTFT) (3,157) 24,124
Weighted average number of ordinary & @& MNAE L& (F i)
shares ("000) 951,370 750,000
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRERN (EE) &
(RMB cents) (AR¥%5) (0.33) 3.22
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. V¥  -BMENKRE

Furniture,
fixtures
and office Plant and Motor  Construction
Buildings  equipment  machinery vehicles in progress Total
B 2£EBER
L E WARE HBERRE "E ERIRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%Tn AR%Tn
Cost AR
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1A18 44,834 4,070 43,668 1,479 2,303 96,354
Additions NE = 213 3,041 408 1,484 5,146
Transfer b 267 = 2,869 = (3,136) =
Disposals HE = (146) = (44) = (190)
At 31 December 2019 #2019 124318
and 1 January 2020 2020817818 45,101 4137 49,578 1,843 651 101,310
Additions NE 162 231 1,094 - 2,551 4,038
Transfer B 437 155 2,257 - (2,849) -
Disposals He - (68) = - - (68)
At 31 December 2020 1202012318 45,700 4,455 52,929 1,843 353 105,280
Accumulated ZitiE
depreciation
At 1 January 2019 201917418 7,126 3,138 21,549 1,121 - 32,934
Charge for the year ERY 2,143 300 3,926 138 = 6,507
Disposals HE = (138) = (42) = (180)
At 31 December 2019 #2019 124318
and 1 January 2020 20201814 9,269 3,300 25,475 1,217 - 39,261
Charge for the year ~ FRFH 2,190 225 3,758 19 - 6,369
Disposals il - (65) - - - (65)
At 31 December 2020 12020125318 11,459 3,460 29,233 1,413 - 45,565
Net carrying amount  REFE
At 31 December 2020  }2020F12F318 34,241 995 23,696 430 353 59,715
At 31 December 2019 201912 A318 35,832 837 24,103 626 651 62,049

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the buildings of
approximately RMBnil and RMB35,832,000 were pledged
to bank for the Group’s bank borrowings, details of
which are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

19. EFEEE

RMB’000
ARBTFIT
Cost R AR
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R2019F12H31H k20201 H1H 19,550
Addition for the year (Note) KEERE (KHEE) 10,763
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12H31H 30,313
Accumulated depreciation 2 HE
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1H1H 1,978
Charge for the year FARAZH 391
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R2019F12H31H k20201 H1H 2,369
Charge for the year FRAZH 450
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12H831H 2,819
Net carrying amount BREFE
At 31 December 2020 720205F12H831H 27,494
At 31 December 2019 MR2019%12A31H 17,181

The right-of-use assets are land use rights located in the
PRC which are under medium lease. Additional lease
contract is entered into for fixed term of 50 years, but
may have extension and termination options as described
below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amount
of the right-of-use assets of approximately RMBnil and
RMB14,808,000 were pledged to bank for the Group’s
bank borrowings, details of which are set out in Note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

Note: Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new
leases entered.

BB E SN T E A HRORE
Bt mE- M MEES QR
E BAR 3505 B RIRE A A0 T ATt &Y
FEEA R 42 \E 2 - T E F IR AR &
RERER - WA P RERZK A - R
EEHEF RGN REE AR
RER ARERAGHNZERRE
FE B KR SR Bl T 2 B o

720204 K% 2019F12 H318 » lREIE
Y ANRBEZ TR ARE14,808,0007T
NEREEES I ASBEMNIRITE
ERBTIRIT FFBERINNEZEEHTH
MRMIFE28 ©

Mzt ZEeREeREMIZZHEEN
EEZEREEE-
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e MR wR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F12H31H IF F/Z

20. INVENTORIES 20. &
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Raw materials R 10,317 11,010
Work in progress TR 1,157 589
Finished goods SIAK 6,520 6,052
17,994 17,651
During the year, there was a significant increase in the FERN- AR MEERR & FEKRH
net realisable value of certain finished goods due to A] 435 SF (B AR 3 h0 o (& Ut - 8 (O] i
market shortage. As a result, a reversal of write-down T AR 125,00070 (20194 = H#URA
of RMB125,000 (2019: write-down of RMB156,000) K #156,0007T) B HERIN T ARFE
has been recognised and included in cost of sales in the SHE RN o
current year.
21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. ESRBREREREE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Trade receivables B 5 EWSKIA 52,983 59,732
Less: provision for impairment R E R (2,564) (209)

50,419 59,523
Bills receivables e U = i 19,065 25,078

Total trade and bills receivables — net 428 5 JiE U = 18 1% fiE Uk 2= 42
—F 5 69,484 84,601
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates:

. BEZRRFEREVREE @)

Z S RWFIBIEEZ A2 MR
DT -

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AR®EF T

Within 30 days 30K A 16,395 17,216
31 to 90 days 31290k 20,974 32,542
91 to 180 days 91£ 180K 9,086 9,241
181 to 365 days 1812 365K 3,973 340
Over 1 year i@ 1E 2,555 393
52,983 59,732

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits for the customer. Credit limits attributed
to customers and credit term granted to customers are
reviewed annually. In determining the recoverability of
the trade receivables, the Group monitors any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivables throughout the
reporting period.

The Group generally allows an average credit period
range from 30 to 120 days to its customers. During the
reporting period, the Group has applied the simplified
approach to providing allowance for ECLs prescribed by
IFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables at each reporting
date. To measure the ECLs, the trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. ECLs are estimated based on
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic condition
and forward-looking information. The assessment on
ECL are set out in Note 6(b) to consolidated financial
statements.

REBEMEFFHEF A NEEFEE
ERFHNEREEENREERFPNEER
BE - AKEESFRAGTEENE
EREMETEFPNEER REE
B 5 RYGKEM AR E R AEE
ERB HRYIANE[R S AR
EREEERES-

rEE—RETERFPNTHEERH
NF30E 120K - RIFEHR  AEE
BRI E BB EREERFE
OSRFT A TEHRE BB BRI B G %
EAAHFRSHREAPHMEESE
WA A2 R EEEERE -
RTTEEHEEEE BSHEKFIE
ERIEHEFRME B R BRI &g H X
HETHH -EHEEESBRBERE
EFEBELERMGET UREBEEBARAE
B R 2= I — MRS AR S B B BE 14 & Rt
EHAE - EEEREEEBENT G
RGBT KM FE6Db) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F12H31H IF F/Z

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. ESERWFEREWRER &)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all bills receivables 20209 K2019%12A31H & &
are with a maturity period of less than 6 months. BWRIOFEZENDHEEE DR

61E A °

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade REEE S EWZIERERENED

receivables are as follows: AR
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
At the beginning of the year REH) 209 345

Provision for/(reversal of provision) B (B EREE)

for impairment 2,355 (136)
At the end of the year RER 2,564 209

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22. FAFIE - e R HMEWS

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

RECEIVABLES b=}
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREEF T
Current E
Other receivables, net of allowance of Hfth fEURTE - HIBRTEHIE &

ECL EERE 4 53
Prepayment TEfT5RIB 3,538 3,999
Prepaid listing expenses TR EmRAX - 3,298

3,542 7,350
Non-current FRE
Prepayment for property, plant Y% HE REE BN RIA
and equipment 5,752 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

(a)

23. BERBEESEB/YREIEFR

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 1T
Cash and cash equivalents () RERBLEEY
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR EEFIT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEIRE 79,641 14,226

(b)

Cash at banks deposit earn interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, bank balances
and cash of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately RMB46,137,000 and
RMB14,087,000 respectively. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency in the PRC and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. For the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in
RMB located in Hong Kong are not subject to the
foreign exchange control.

Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, bank deposits
of the Group of approximately RMBnil and
RMB2,544,000 are pledged as collateral for issuing
bills (Note 24).

(b)

RENBZRERERAE

RITEFRSRIEEFRRITER
M RIZTZ B R BRENF B

20205 K20194F12A31H -
REBEUARBTHEZRITER
KIRE D RIH AR 46,137,000
TR ARE14,087,0007C ° AR
BMRABYIHEATEHLBRNE
o [m) B3R SN FRZE 38 SF R B
BT 1 € &9 HNEE B I 28 Rl K%
R AEERBBUARKEE
RIS RIS EEBWMB AT INE
B IR o

BIEARITER

20204 20194128318 » &
SEEMESFINVARES TR
AR, 544,000t R TIERD
TR ERBRITEEAEE R (M
£T24)°

CROREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F12H31H IF F/Z

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23. BERBAEEEYREEFR

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued) TERE)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from () METBELENEEYHIER
financing activities
The table below details the cash flows and non- TRFAFVAEEREEREER
cash changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from BEMNRESRENIEIRESEH -
financing activities. Except as disclosed below, there Br NI EEEIN REBREE
were no non-cash changes in the Group’s liabilities HEENABTEIFRGEF-

arising from financing activities.

Amounts

Bank Other due to
borrowings borrowing  shareholders Total
®ITEE Hibfe g ENRERZE M@t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 31 December 2018 and M2018F 1274318 &

1 January 2019 2019 1A 18 10,000 - - 10,000
Changes from financing cash BER &R &
flows:
Proceed from bank and ROIREMEERGHE
other borrowings 11,000 10,830 - 21,830
Repayment of bank and EBRBTRAMEE
other borrowings (10,000) - - (10,000)
Increase in amounts due JE 1 AR 3R SR IR A
to shareholders - - 37,378 37,378
1,000 10,830 37,378 49,208
Other changes: H fth 2
Exchange adjustments B K 3% - (103) - (103)
Capitalisation of shareholders' R & H & 1L,
loan - - (36,000) (36,000)
- (103) (36,000) (36,103)
At 31 December 2019 20194128318 11,000 10,727 1,378 23,105

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report
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E B R OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # Z£2020F 12H31H I F/Z
23. RERAESEFYREERRE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (continued)

The table below details the cash flows and non-
cash changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities. Except as disclosed below, there
were no non-cash changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities.

TTEMR@E)
() BMEFBELENEGEHRE)

TRESIAEBBEEDEEN
BENBESRERERSED
BTXRBEEN AEBREE
BEENABELEIRLEE -

Amounts
Bank Other due to
borrowings  borrowing shareholders Total
RITEE HifeE EBARERE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR%®Trn AR%T:R
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 128318 &
1 January 2020 2020 1A 18 11,000 10,727 1,378 23,105
Change from financing cash ~ REBLRELE:
flows:
Interest paid ERHME (334) (152) - (486)
Repayment of bank and BRETRAMEE
other borrowings (11,000) (10,678) - (21,678)
(11,334) (10,830) - (22,164)
Other changes: Hih&5:
Exchange adjustments B 5 G - (49) 7 (42)
Interest expense MERAX 334 152 - 486
Capitalisation of shareholders’ [% 5 &5 & A1k
loan - - (1,385) (1,385)
334 103 (1,378) (941)
At 31 December 2020 M2020512A31H = = = =

RENMBREREBRAE —ZT-ZFHFH
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e B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 22020 12H31H IFF/E
24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

24.

BEZRARERENRE

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®ET T
Trade payables g 5N RIA 19,946 21,911
Bills payables e iR - 8,480
19,946 30,391

The average credit period from suppliers is up to 30 to
90 days. The following is an ageing analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice dates at the end

of the reporting period:

HEFRENTHEERERA
30F90K - RIREBKRE ST
RIARBEZ A2 PM BRI DT
;YT

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREBTT
Within 30 days E[WFNA 12,571 13,206
31 to 90 days 31290k 6,625 8,139
91 to 180 days 91 180K 255 217
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 416 220
Over 1 year HBi@1E 79 129
19,946 21,911

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all bills payables are
with a maturity period of less than 6 months.

’| 52 SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

Bt 75 R R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

25. HtEARERETER

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREEF T
Accrued staff costs B8 TR 1,035 1,248
Accrued expenses and other payables & 515 st K H fib & ~f 7018 4,426 3,061
Contract liabilities (Note (a)) EHaE (MiEa) 232 156
5,693 4,465

Note:

Contract liabilities related to sales of faux leather
chemicals contracts. All contracts are for periods within
one year. Entire amount of the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year was recognised as revenue
during the year 31 December 2020.

As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted
approximately to RMB125,000.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amounts of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

The Group received certain amount from customers
as deposits before the sales of faux leather chemicals
contracts are completed.

26. DEFERRED INCOME

B &L -

(a)

AHBEFIRALIE(CERHE
EEH -FMEENHRE A —
FARA-FHPEHNEERBENE
EBE BN E E2020F 128
3TEEFERNERBLA -

R2019FE1A1B - A0 8B8E
& B A# ARE125,0007T °

TECHRABNEESR B
B RGEFRAT

REBRATZLERHFEER
TR ZATE B R PWEE T
BORERES -

26. EIEWA

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®ET T ARBTTT
Assets related governments grants & 7 FB B8 WO BT 47 B 821 958
REMBEZERERLAT —E-ZTFFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F12H31H IF F/Z

26. DEFERRED INCOME (continued) 26. JEFEW A ()
Movement of assets related government grants: & = FE R Y BT i B
RMB’000

AR®EF T
At 1 January 2019 20191 H 18 1,095
Credited to profit or loss FFABE (137)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 72019412 A31H & 2020615 1H 958
Credited to profit or loss FTABE (137)
At 31 December 2020 72020%F12H31H 821
Government grant of approximately RMB1,300,000 was R2017F B WENB AT/ B 49 A R 8
received in 2017 in relation to the subsidy for acquisition 1,300,0007T - ER UG BE 2= T #4425 A9 %5 B
of certain machinery. B
The carrying amount of deferred income of the Group AEERLEWANKEERERRS BN
analysed for reporting purposes as: ST A

As at 31 December

®12A31A8
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Current portion BVEREE 5 137 137
Non-current portion FERNEAEL 684 821
821 958
27. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS 27. BIRRMRE
The amounts due to shareholders were non-trade nature, ERBRRERBEBIEEZIEE &K
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The W OB RBLZERER RKERLE
outstanding balances were waived by shareholders on 10 FREN2020F2 A10RERREE

February 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28. BITRHEMEE
As at 31 December
R12H31H

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARET T

Bank borrowings — secured RITIEE—FER - 11,000
Other borrowing — unsecured HibfEE —EIKH - 10,727
Total bank and other borrowings RITREAME AR = 21,727

Less: amounts shown under BmBBETATERE

current liabilities - (21,727)

Amounts shown under ERBBEBETNREE
non-current liabilities

According to the repayment schedule, the bank and
other borrowings are repayable as follows:

RIFEERREK RITREMEERE
BUATKEERER

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Within one year —F R

As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowings of
approximately RMB11,000,000 was denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2019, other borrowing of
approximately RMB10,727,000 was denominated in HKD.

- 21,727

M2019%F12A831H RITEEHAR
#11,000,0007C LA A REEZHE o

M2019%E12 8318 - HIEEHAR
#10,727,0007C A ToEHE ©

RENMBREREBRAE —ZT-ZFHFH

155



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z£2020F 12H31H I F/Z
28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are

as follows:

28.

RITREMES @)

AEEBENERAER(EREOF
K)BEWT :

As at 31 December
M®12831H

2020 2019

20204 20194

Fixed rate borrowings

Assets of the Group pledged to secure the bank

borrowings comprises:

BEMEEE

% 2.00%-4.79%

RERRITEEMERNAEEEE
B

As at 31 December

M12A318
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Building (Note 18) BF (HizE18) - 35,832
Right-of-use assets FHEEE = 14,808
= 50,640

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has unutilised
banking facilities and other finance institute facilities
amounting to approximately RMB11,820,000.
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E B R OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 29. ELEBIREE
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in SEMBRARNERREERIEE
the consolidated statement of financial position and the EXo MREEHRBEEHMT

movements during the reporting period are as follows:

Provision of

impairment

BERE

RMB’000

AREEF T

At 1 January 2019 20195 1A1R 90
Charge to profit or loss (Note 13) felEaEk (MEE13) (21)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 MR2019F 124318 % 2020F1 418 69
Credit to profit or loss (Note 13) sFAER (MFE13) 316
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12H31H 385

Note: Bt 5

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of B 7 ok Y TB B 2k 2K i A1) 2R iR N 4 gt
approximately RMB2,630,000 (2019: RMB139,000) of unused EAEELEZAHATEABEYHARK
tax losses arising in Hong Kong due to the unpredictability 2,630,0007T (20194 : A R#139,000
of future profit streams. Such losses may be carried forward T)HEREBELERBEE S BB EE
indefinitely. Bt o

RENERRERAT —B-BFEFH 157
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and/
or rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include any directors and employees of
the Company, including all executive directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 10 February 2020 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
option in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their subsidiaries, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S B % 3R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 0. B fESTE

ARARIREBRETE(HE]) B
EREAEBEBKINELERZE
ER2EERBEER N KB R %
FTEIZABR2EERTEARRIMER
BEEREE  BEARQRARENEA
AT B BITE E - 51 81 70202042
A10B &M BRIERITHHHIERT
BEI¥BZBEREI0ERGR -

BIETE RESEERHAORITHEE
BEBENRSEHE AESEREITER
AR BEMEEE ZTRMDA10% °
REMI12E A HER - RIETEIRE
HEEBRSHEERRENA TEITZ
B E B - AR R B R A B
BTN Z21% B o T#E— %
o 7B 38 1t PR BB 2 B AR i ZE JE AR SR A%
BAE b

BYARARAIES THREHKEFER
R FEEMBHEA L BRERS
B IENITTE S LN B
EE12E A BER - B F ARG —%F
FTERRSK—BBIIERITESTHE
RN B AR 2 EREREBBAR
AR B 31T 9 20.1% sk 42
BE(REARAFTBRMABEEAHZE
st &) #8:85,000,0008 7T © B
N AN
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

31.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
would be determined by the directors. The exercise
price of the share options would be determined by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options, which must
be a business day; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer,
provided that the subscription price shall not be lower
than the nominal value of the shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
did not grant any share options to directors, employees
or other parties.

30. B AERT &l ()

REBEREZZHINEL B R
4B ABREABRASINEG®H BT A
EREREN - RHBEREZITFEH
HEEET BREZITEEHRES
B HABSERUATZESE ()
ARl EREZHEB(KAE
AEER)EBRIATZWHE i)
EERZLNHBMAER S B AR R
DR FHRTE  ERERE
NMESERRHDEE -

REE2020F12 8318 IEFEE - XA
ATEMESR - EEstEM A RET
(AT B AR HE o

SHARE CAPTIAL 31. IR&
The Company ¥/
Details of movements of share capital of the Company RABRRARESFBFLOT -
are as follows:
Number Share
of shares Capital
K& E (&N
RMB’000
ARETT
Authorised: ETE
At 29 January 2019 (date of incorporation), 72019418298 (A B
ordinary share of US$1 each (Note (a)) ) BREB1ZTHTBER
(Mi&EG@)) 50,000 335
Share subdivision (Note (b)) &1 3 48 (P sE(b) ) 49,950,000 -
Increasing authorised share capital EIEFERA (HEE(0))
(Note (c)) 950,000,000 6,365
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020, #2019 12 A31H KR 2020514
ordinary share of US$0.001 each 18 SREE000IETHER
& 1,000,000,000 6,700
Share subdivision (Note (e)) R B4R (KisE(e)) 1,000,000,000 -
At 31 December 2020, ordinary 720205128310 B REE
share of US$0.0005 each 0.00053% T 1 & & IR 2,000,000,000 6,700
REMBEZERERLAT —E-ZTFFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 22020 12H31H IFF/E
31. SHARE CAPTIAL (continued)

31. RA(4#&)

The Company (continued) KAT(HE)
Number Share
of shares Capital
BROHE R 2
RMB'000
ARETT
Issued and fully paid: BERTRAR:
At 29 January 2019 (date of incorporation), 732019418298 (s B
ordinary share of US$1 each (Note (a)) H) BREABEIETHLBR
(F&E(@)) 50,000 335
Share subdivision (Note (b)) foﬁﬁﬁiﬁ (PF43E (b)) 49,950,000 -
Issue of shares (Note (d)) BITRR M (P EE(d)) 50,000,000 335
At 31 December 2019, ordinary share of 720194128318 - &RAEE
US$0.001 each 0.001ETTH L&A 100,000,000 670
Share subdivision (Note () R 4 48 (BT sE(e)) 100,000,000 -
Capitalisation issue (Note (f)) BAL BT (HE)) 550,000,000 1,944
Issue of new shares under Global BIE 2R EBITHR (WiEQ)
Offering (Note (g)) 250,000,000 883
At 31 December 2020, ordinary share of #2020F128318 ' 8 REE
US$0.0005 each 0.0005X% THEER 1,000,000,000 3,497

Notes:

(@) The Company was incorporated on 29 January 2019 with
authorised share capital of US$50,000 divided into 50,000
shares at a par value of US$1 each. On the same day, one
share of US$1 was allotted and issued to initial subscriber
of the Company, an independent third party. Such one
share was then immediately transferred to Sunlight
Global, following which 49,999 new shares of US$1 each
were issued to Sunlight Global.

(b) On 17 April 2019, each Share then of a par value of
US$1.00 was subdivided into 1,000 Shares of a par
value of US$0.001 each. Upon completion of the share
subdivision, the authorised share capital of the Company
was US$50,000 divided into 50,000,000 Shares of a par
value of US$0.001 each, all of which had been issued and
credited as fully paid.

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report

(b)

NN AE 20196152908 & ft &
SR TE R A A50,000E T A
50,000 &R EE1ZETTHIARG © [
B —BREEIZETHRDERSE R
BT TARRNVBRBEA (BB
SNE=T) oz BRIk A8 BN
#:% T Sunlight Global * It 849,999
R EE1E TGO EREITT
Sunlight Global °

MR2019F4 8178 E R E R EE
1.003& TR IR 3 37 40 71,0000 &
fi% T {20.001 3 7T B AR A7 © B 17 37 48
SR & - AR E] A E B A A50,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

31. SHARE CAPTIAL (continued)
The Company (continued)

(@

On 9 May 2019, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from US$50,000 divided into
50,000,000 Shares of US$0.001 each to US$1,000,000
divided into 1,000,000,000 Shares of US$0.001 each by
creation of additional 950,000,000 Shares of US$0.001
each ranking pari passu in all aspects with the existing
issued Shares.

On 19 June 2019, the shareholders’ loans owed by the
Company to Sunlight Global Investment Limited, Lilian
Global Investment Limited and Jumping Jive International
Limited were capitalised by way of the Company allotting
and issuing 50,000,000 Shares, credited as fully paid, to
its shareholders.

On 10 February 2020, all the issued and unissued shares
of the Company with par value of US$0.001 each share
was subdivided into two shares of US$0.0005 each.
Accordingly, following the completion of the subdivision,
the authorised share capital became US$1,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of par value of
US$0.0005 each, each ranking pari passu with one
another in all respects.

Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all the
shareholders of the Company on 10 February 2020, the
directors of the Company were authorised to capitalise
an amount of US$275,000 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company and applied in
paying up in full at par a total of 550,000,000 shares for
allotment and issue to the shareholders of the Company

The Company was successfully listed on the Stock
Exchange on 12 March 2020 by way of share offer of
25,000,000 public offer share and 225,000,000 placing
shares respectively at offer price of HK$0.52 per share.

31. BA& (&)
KAT(E)

(@

(e)

RENBZRERERAE

R201945H9H & 1B 12 &L &E /N
950,000,000 & X E {0.0013
THRG (EREFEEEBE
BIRMEERSMWAM)  ARQ
AR E M AN 50,000k T (95 A&
50,000,000% & AX I {E0.001E T #Y
% 17 ) 12 50 Z=1,000,000% 7T (9 A
1,000,000,000% & % ™ {B0.0013%
TR ) °

MR201946 198 AR Al #
K Sunlight Global Investment
Limited * Lilian Global Investment
Limited &2Jumping Jive International
Limited#) IR R E BB AR A 7 A H
A% 5 A %% K ¥ 1750,000,000/% A BR
V=T O S0 R Wik - %N A

20202 B 108 - AR R EREE
0.001ELZ B E BT RARET
%10 2 #F 48 /2 M AR & A% [ {80.0005
EUR R Bt AT A
SEE M ARE 51,000,000 7T D A
2,000,000,0004% & B I {E0.00053
THERD (Bt z2ERAEFEZE
BRZEMAL) o

RIFE AR A2 B8R R 7202062 A
1I0HBBEMNEAMAZR  ARFE
ERBEEBRNQARMDEERF
275,000 JT R BR BB & N1k
WERZABREESHEESHE
550,000,0000% % 17 &9 A% X - LA BE 5%
RETTFARARIME -

FERZEEETRS2BTERMD
% 25,000,000 A H SR D &
225,000,000/% B2 E A% 15 - &N A A
M2020F3 8128 KW fE B R AT £
M °

S
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F12H31H IF F/Z

32. RESERVES 32. f#f&
(a) The Group (a) A~5£HE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the NEENBEEERAEBNZE
movements therein for the current year and prior SE N EEE) 25N e A Rz
years are presented in the consolidated statement of K o
changes in equity.
(b) The Company (b) Z&2F]
Share Exchange Accumulated Total
premium reserve loss equity
A3 R E BB X i 25 E1E BER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®Tn ARETr AR®Tn
At 29 January 2019 1201951 A29R
(Date of incorporation) (FEMASZ B H) - - - -
Loss for the period HANER = = (11,764) (11,764)
Other comprehensive loss HRNEMEEER

for the period - (103) - (103)
Total comprehensive loss HRNE2AEEES

for the period - (103) (11,764) (11,867)
Effect of reorganisation EENTE 35,665 = = 35,665
At 31 December 2019and ~ ®2019F12A318 %

1 January 2020 2020F1H18 35,665 (103) (11,764) 23,798
Capitalisation issue BRI EAT (1,944) - - (1,944)
Issue of shares pursuant to BIE 2B ERTRG

Global offering 116,906 - - 116,906
Transaction costs attributable to 12 & 2 BB & 21T (0 &

issue to shares under Global {5 S5 A&

offering (22,211) - - (22,211)
Loss for the year ENEBA = = (46,475) (46,475)
Other comprehensive income  ERH M2 ERA

for the year - 103 - 103
Total comprehensive FrzEkzE/ (B1B)

income/(loss) for the year Rk - 103 (46,475) (46,372)
At 31 December 2020 120205124318 128,416 - (58,239) 70,177

SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

THE COMPANY

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

33. R HBEMRRE

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
MIsE ARET T AR T TT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—FKKEB A RIARE 36,000 36,000
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables ¥& < 5k 78 K E fth i W 3018 2,063 3,653
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUYHI B N B X IE 22,465 =
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR NI 20,323 70
44,851 3,723
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HiER KB R ETER 880 82
Amounts due to subsidiaries JFE AF FfY /BB A B 3R 3E 6,297 4,446
Other borrowings HmEE - 10,727
7,177 15,255
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (&%) FHE 37,674 (11,532)
Total assets less current WEEBRBAERS
liabilities 73,674 24,468
Net assets EEFE 73,674 24,468
Capital and reserves BEXR#EE
Share capital A& 2 31 3,497 670
Reserves {1 32(b) 70,177 23,798
73,674 24,468
RERFIZERERAT —T-ZFFIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, =2020F12H31H IFFZ

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transaction

3. ERBEARS

BEeMBRRTEMEMANES
SN REER IR E AN ERE T T

balances with its related parties during the reporting B S0T

period:

Name of related parties Relationship

BELER B &

Mr. Chen Hua A director and a controlling shareholder
of the Company

BREE ST 4 RNRAREE RIERAR

Mr. He Zhangcai

G

Hangzhou Qiyue Investment Management
Co., Ltd.* (MMBBEIREERBRAA)
(formerly known as Deging Qiyue Investment
Management Co., Ltd.*)

MMBEBKREERBR QA
(AR RBERMBIREEEARLA)

Sunlight Global Investment Limited

Sunlight Global Investment Limited

Jumping Jive International Limited

Jumping Jive International Limited

* English name is for identification purpose only.

(a) Recurring transaction

A senior management and a shareholder
of the Company

ARBERERERKRR

A former shareholder of Zhejiang Sunlight which is
beneficially owned as to by Mr. Chen Hua

WLRERRR  ZArIHRELREERESR

A controlling shareholder of the Company
ZAYNSIEAE i
A shareholder of the Company
RABIRE

* EXEBEMBR

(a) REMRS
Year ended 31 December

BZEZ12A31BLFE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBETT

Rental expenses to a related party SftF—REESTHNESHE
— Hanzhou Qiyue Investment — M E IR E B

Management Co., Ltd. AR AT 330 193
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 £, £2020F12H31H IFF/ZF

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Recurring transaction (continued)

In 2020, the Group entered into lease agreement
and supplement lease agreement with Hangzhou
Qiyue Investment Management Co., Ltd. for a term
commencing on 1 June 2019 and ending on 31
December 2019; and 1 January 2020 and ending
on 30 June 2020; and 1 July 2020 and ending
on 31 December 2020 for the lease of the leased
premises (collectively, the “Lease Agreement”).
The rent payable under the Lease Agreement
was determined with reference to the prevailing
market rent for similar properties at the same
development and in neighbouring areas at which
the Leased Premises are located and confirmed by
the independent professional valuer that the rent
payable under the Lease Agreement is fair and
reasonable and consistent with the market rent for

3. EXBELRZ (8)

(a)

REMRZ(E)

K2020%F - AEE AR EEY
¥EMMNRBIEEEEERAR]
RIVEEwEAETEE R
HABR F12019% 6 A 1 H#EE20194F
12A31HE&R  2020F1 A1H#E
2202096 A30H 43R « 202047
A1H # E2020F 128318 &R
(i HEHE) - BREHAER
REMZEeI2ZHEWERN
AR EEEEEYEN
ERmSHeEE BEBLE
FEEMER BIEHERHEE
NezHeBAFEAE HRER
HAEMENTSES M
EMBETRETRIEZER
REF ETHRAFUAZENRE

similar premises in similar locations. The transaction HOE R FTE I FERE
contemplated under the Lease Agreement is
fully exempt from shareholders’ approval and all
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
Balance with related parties (b) EERAELIVAER
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR ARET T
Amounts due to shareholders & 15 IS R F0 T8
— Sunlight Global Investment — Sunlight Global Investment
Limited Limited = 1,336
— Jumping Jive International — Jumping Jive International
Limited Limited - 42
- 1,378

The amounts due to shareholders were waived on
10 February 2020.

RENBZRERERAE

JET AR R FRIEFN 20202 A 10H
TERRR -

S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR wR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z2020F12H31H IF F/Z

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES 3. EXBAERFRS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
() Compensation of key management () EEEEAEHH
personnel
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31MBLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTFR ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e RN EWET

in kind 1,739 1,831
Contributions to retirement RRAE T FT B 3K
benefits schemes 142 294
1,881 2,125
35. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 35. FEAKREE
Save as disclosed in the report, subsequent to 31 MR E FT i B2 & S0 - 1020204F12 A 31
December 2020, the following events took place: H#% £ 5|E1E
On 22 March 2021 (after trading hours of the Stock PR2021FE3AN2H (BT 5K
Exchange), the Company entered into the placing %) NRAFTHEEERBEEIEEH
agreement with the placing agent whereby the Company 2B ARTAKERESIBA
conditionally agreed to place, through the placing agent, EREB - BENHNEERE HFZ
on a best effort basis, up to 200,000,000 new shares to 200,000,0008% #F x0T R DR~ &
not less than six independent placees at the placing price By AR A BREEBAERIEERND
of HK$0.240 per placing share. 0.2408 7T ©

'] 66 SUNLIGHT TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E B R OR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z=2020F12A31H IF F/ZF

36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

As at the date of this report, the Company has direct and
indirect equity interests in the following subsidiaries:

37.

38.

36. fHEB D RFHIT
RAREBH - ADARUTHEA
Rl A B R P

Attributable equity
interest and voting
Place and date of Registered/ power held by the Principal
Name of Company incorporation paid up capital Company activities
1A AR L 3 B R aMER,/ ARRHEN
DA AR B BERA EERERRRRE IEXH
2020 2019
Direct:
E#:
Darkblue Investment Limited the BV, US$50,000 100% 100% Investment holding
31 January 2019
Darkblue Investment Limited RBERZHEE 50,000 7 100% 100% HEERK
201914318
Indirect:
B!
HongKong Gorgeous Hong Kong, HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Investment Limited 7 March 2019
BRARRERRAA HE:2019F3878 10,0008 7T 100% 100% &R &K
MLREMMHBR BRAF  The PRC, RMB36,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and
Zhejiang Sunlight Material 18 December 2003 sales of faux leather
Technology Co., Ltd* chemicals
(formerly known as
MIREEHRE ARAA
Zhejiang Sunlight Technology
Co., Ltd*)
HTREMMAHRBRERAT  HE 2003F12A188 AR¥K 100% 100% RERHEEATLEL
(BRI IREEGHEER 36,000,0007T B

NI

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30

March 2021.

37. kEREF

ETHREHRDEN D BUATEARF

B22575 -

38.

HERS M H®R

SEMIEHRRN2021F3A30HES
EEROERIRETE -

RENBZRERERAE

CROREER
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FIVE YAERS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFEMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited consolidated financial statements is set out

AEESROAEMBRFEFENREREER
BEME(RiREE ENEEZ
WEROBIT

Rap®

below:
RESULTS E 4
Year ended 31 December
BENANALEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20205 20194 20184 20174 20165
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®Trx AREFR
Revenue A 134,441 182,681 167,307 157,641 151,160
(Loss)/profit before taxation K FiAl (E1E) /& H (2,788) 28,976 35,307 38,486 29,644
Income tax expenses RS (369) (4,852) (4,517) (3,536) (4,238)
(Loss)/profit for the year R (BR),/ 55 (3,157) 24,124 30,790 34,950 25,406
Total (loss)/profit and FR(BR)/EH K
comprehensive (loss)/income 27 (1) /&
for the year L] (3,918) 24,003 30,790 34,950 25,406
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
Year ended 31 December
BZENANALEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020F 2019F 2018%F 20175 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT AR®Trx ARETR
Total assets BEE 264,007 205,671 175,791 197,447 203,160
Total liabilities BafRE (26,656) (61,365) (48,623) (50,669) (91,332)
Total equity g 237,351 144,306 127,168 146,778 111,828
The summary above does not form part of the audited FRABZTIBREERGAMBERRN—
consolidated financial statements. =i
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